
 
 

AGENDA 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 
HOOD ROOM, MATTHEWS TOWN HALL 

NOVEMBER 23, 2015 - 7:00 PM 
 

1. Regular Meeting Called to Order 

 

2. Invocation 

 

3. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

4. Items to be Added to the Agenda 

 

5. Presentation of Donation to Police Department from Polo Club Residents 

 

6. Proclamation for Native American Heritage Month 

7. Receive Update to 2008 Mecklenburg County Park & Recreation Master Plan – Jim Garges and Michael 

Kirschman  

 

8. Public Comment (Please sign in to speak at this time. Limited to 4 minutes) 

 

9. Reports from Boards/Committees 

A. Red Brick Partnership – Co Chairs Rob Jacik and John Urban 

 

10. Consent Agenda  

A. Approve Minutes of the November 9, 2015 Meeting  

B. Reappoint Members to the Economic Development Advisory Committee 

C. Approve Technology Reimbursement to Commissioner Miller in the Amount of $1,514.04 

D. Approve Tax Refunds 

E. Approve Budget Ordinance Amendments to: 

1) Recognize Donation Received from Residents of the Polo Club for the Purchase of Body 

Cameras in the Amount of $3,200.40 

2) Recognize Donation Received from Matthews Chamber for the Purchase of Body 

Cameras in the Amount of $2,700 

3) Recognize Shared Proceeds Received through DEA Taskforce in the Amount of 

$3,944.85 

 



4) Recognize Shared Proceeds Received through DEA Taskforce in the Amount of 

$28,798.64 

 
 

11. Unfinished Business 

A. Oscar Drive – Adopt Resolution Calling for Assessment Roll and Public Hearing 

B. Receive Update on Planning Conference To-Do List 

 

12. New Business 

A. Receive Presentation on FY 2014-14 Audit – Matt Braswell 

B. Receive Monthly Budget Report 

C. Approve Resolution for e-Bid Process 

D. Discuss Regulation of 400 Foot Communication Tower through Zoning 

 

13. Mayor’s Report 

 

14. Attorney’s Report 

 

15. Town Manager’s Report 

 

16. Adjournment 

 

 



 
 

MINUTES 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING 
HOOD ROOM, MATTHEWS TOWN HALL 

NOVEMBER 9, 2015 - 7:00 PM 
 

PRESENT: Mayor James Taylor; Mayor Pro Tem Kress Query; Commissioners George Fossett, John 
Higdon, Chris Melton, Jeff Miller and John Ross; Town Attorney Charles Buckley; Town Manager 
Hazen Blodgett; Town Clerk Lori Canapinno 

 
ALSO PRESENT: Assistant Town Manager Jamie Justice; Communications Director Jen Thompson; Parks, 

Recreation and Cultural Resources Director Corey King; Public Works Director CJ O’Neill; 
Finance Director Chris Tucker; Planning Director Kathi Ingrish; Senior Planner Jay Camp; Zoning 
Administrator Mary Jo Gollnitz; Planner Dillon Lackey; Planning Board Chair Steve Lee, Vice 
Chair Rob Markiewitz, Members Barbara Dement, Gary Turner and David Weiser 

 
 
REGULAR MEETING CALLED TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Taylor called the meeting to order at 7:05 pm. 
 
 
INVOCATION 
 
Mr. Ross rendered an invocation. 
 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Mayor Taylor led the audience in the pledge. 
 
Mayor Taylor introduced Tom Gill of the Pancreatic Cancer Network. Mr. Gill discussed the upcoming World 
Pancreatic Cancer Day in the Town of Matthews on November 13 and urged citizens to educate themselves on 
pancreatic cancer. There currently is no early detection took for this type of cancer so people need to bring 
awareness to it and hopefully encourage researchers to focus on pancreatic cancer. More information can be 
found at the website pancan.org. 
 
Mayor Taylor then recognized Assistant Town Manager Jamie Justice. Mr. Justice is leaving the Town of 
Matthews to become the Town Manager of the Town of Davidson, North Carolina. Mr. Justice has done many 
great things for Matthews and he will be missed.  
 
 
ITEMS TO BE ADDED TO THE AGENDA 
 
None 
 
 

 



Board of Commissioners 
November 9, 2015 

RECOGNITION OF HAUNTED TRAIL PARTICIPANTS 
 
Police Chief Rob Hunter, Parks, Recreation and Community Resources Director Corey King, Police Officer Don 
Warren and his wife Jennifer Warren discussed the annual Haunted Trail activities. The Warrens developed this 
activity over many years and ran it in their back yard for a number of years before bringing it to the town. The 
Warren’s children came up with the idea as a way to give back to their community and raise money for charity and 
that has continued over the years as the program expanded. This year the trail was located at the greenway 
behind Matthews Elementary School. Many partners work together every year to ensure the program’s success, 
including the Matthews Key Club, Butler Key Club, Crestdale Dream Team, Matthews Police Explorers, Matthews 
Fire Explorers, the Matthews Parks and Rec staff and the Matthews Police Department.  $7,152 was raised this 
year and those funds will be donated to the Matthews Free Medical Clinic, to Novant Health’s breast cancer 
screening bus and to a local family whose young son is fighting leukemia.  
 
 
RECOGNITION OF MATTHEWS 101 PARTICIPANTS 
 
Mayor Taylor and Communications Director Jen Thompson discussed the Matthews 101 program, a new multi-
week training program that allows citizens to see how Town departments function and how the Town is run in 
general. This program will be offered regularly with the next session planned for spring 2016.  
 
The inaugural members include David Hudome, Grace McLain, Jon Patrick, Allison Pence, Mike Pfeilschifter, 
Nancy Pugh, Dawn Reid, Deborah Seals, Don Smith, Kurt Stubenhofer, Becky Thompson, Gene Triplett, John 
Wasco and Sue Wasco. 
 
 
UPDATE ON STIP PROJECT I-5507 (I-485 EXPRESS LANES) – WARREN COOKSEY, DCDOT DIVISION 10 
 
Warren Cooksey, Director of Outreach & Community Affairs for the North Carolina Department of Transportation, 
Division 10 gave an update on the 1-485 express lane project. Construction will begin in 2017 on a 16.6 mile 
length of express lane between I-77 and US 74. The project will cost $2.2 million. This will offer an option for 
drivers interested in paying some amount for a guaranteed rate of travel through that section. The rates have not 
yet been determined.   
 
 
RECESS REGULAR MEETING FOR PUBLIC HEARING ON PETITION TO AMEND THE UNIFIED 
DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF MATTHEWS  
 
Motion by Mr. Ross to recess the regular meeting for a public hearing. The motion was seconded by Mr. Miller 
and unanimously approved.  
 
Planning Director Kathi Ingrish introduced members of the Planning Board in attendance: Chairman Steve Lee, 
Vice Chair Rob Markiewitz, David Weiser, Gary Turner and Barbara Dement. She also introduced Dillon Lackey, 
the department’s new GIS/Planner.  
 
 
Motion 2015-3: To amend the Matthews Downtown Master Plan to add the Downtown Streetscape Improvement 
Plan 
 
Senior Planner Jay Camp summarized the history of this plan. Some plan goals include the development of 
proposed street cross sections, identification of spot improvements in key areas of downtown and identification of 
development/redevelopment opportunities. Planning staff will continue to tweak the document as this is still a very 

2 
 



Board of Commissioners 
November 9, 2015 

fluid plan and input is appreciated. He noted this is a supplement to the existing Downtown Master Plan and will 
work together with it. The consulting company is known for their keen eyes for inexpensive spot fixes such as 
curb extensions and painting projects – things that are easy and inexpensive in the grand scheme of things but 
are great in the long run.  
 
Jim Ford of McGill and Associates reviewed the draft plan, noting the downtown area was examined from the 
perspective of people in cars, on bikes and on foot. Street types were broken down and conceptual renderings 
highlight possible future options. He noted that the DOT’s planned John Street improvements are still very 
conceptual so specifics line lane widths aren’t included at this time.  
 
Mr. Miller said this is a wonderful plan and opens their eyes to new possibilities. He has some questions and 
comments that he will send to staff. Mr. Ross said his opinion of the plan is very positive overall and he especially 
likes the concept of the multiuse path at the railroad parking lot. He is concerned that usual asphalts might be 
removed in other areas where the town already experiences traffic congestion. He urged staff to be conscious of 
that. Mr. Higdon questioned the plan’s enforceability and Mr. Camp explained that this document will dictate 
certain things as it creates the basis for improvements that should be made when a developer comes in. He said 
he understands the need to work in some flexibility into the document since no one wants to scare developers 
away with inflexible requirements.  
 
Mayor Taylor opened the floor to public comment. John Urban, 2523 Macie Glen Court, Matthews said he was 
privileged to work on the stakeholders group and agreed that flexibility is important. He suggested requiring the 
plan to be reviewed annually with projects added in every year. He also suggested adding a cost assessment, 
saying it would be difficult to adapt a plan without knowing the costs involved. He said god economic development 
is value through design and he would rather not simply paint if the Town could wait a little while and then do 
something more substantial instead. Overall the draft plan works in concept and now details need to be honed in 
on for specific projects.  
 
The application will be reviewed by the Planning Board on November 24 and will come back to the Board of 
Commissioners for decision on December 14.  
 
 
Application 2015-635/Pike Nursery: To change the zoning from O(CD) to B-1(CD) on that certain property 
belonging to Matthews Center Associates and located to the east of Northeast Parkway, south of Devore Lane 
and north of Matthews Township Parkway and being designated as Tax Parcels 193-521-10 & 11 
 
Mr. Camp noted this application was the subject of the Town’s first predevelopment consultation. The application 
is for the construction of an approximate 10,000 square foot retail nursery and 30,000 square foot greenhouse 
with 75 parking spaces. The site’s current Office zoning dates back to the 1980s before the existence of Matthews 
Township Parkway. The commercial nursery with greenhouse is the only proposed use. 
 
The sole access point is provided by an easement through Town property to Devore Lane. There will be a 30-foot 
tree line buffer and while the Unified Development Ordinance requires 12% tree canopy preservation, the 
applicant indicates that at least 17% will be preserved. There will be a minimum of 50% brick on the portions of 
the façade facing the two public streets. The applicants will connect an internal sidewalk to the public sidewalk on 
Devore Lane.  
 
Mr. Camp summarized outstanding issues: a PCO concept plan approval will be required prior to the Board’s final 
decision and the applicant is still working with staff and NCDOT to determine what road improvements may be 
required as a result of recommendations in the traffic study. The Public Works Director did propose adding a 
second turn lane or a lane extension but that is a suggestion, not a requirement.  
 

3 
 



Board of Commissioners 
November 9, 2015 

Mr. Ross asked why the connection couldn’t come off the existing bulb-out on Devore Lane and Mr. Camp said he 
didn’t have information on that. Mr. Ross asked about the path of the sidewalk and Mr. Camp said it is intended to 
be similar to what currently exists – the intent is to maintain that existing vegetation in its current form. Mr. Ross 
said he would like to see that expanded into a multiuse path as a way to extend the greenway on this side of US 
74. Mr. Camp noted that the Fountains apartment development is adding a ten foot wide multiuse path on their 
property across the street from this site. 
 
Applicant representatives John Carmichael, Mike Chapman of Pike Nurseries, Carlton Burton of Burton 
Engineering and John Urban of Urban Architectural Group addressed the Board. Mr. Carmichael noted that the 
site is challenging to develop due to various issues but it lends itself perfectly to this use.  
 
Mr. Higdon said he would welcome the business to town but asked what would be done to mitigate fertilizer runoff 
into the stream. Mr. Chapman explained that Pike Nursery is a retailer, not a grower, so there’s not an excess of 
fertilizer used – they don’t add additional fertilizer to their products and the fertilizer they sell on its own would be 
covered. Mr. Burton explained that all runoff from the site would run off to a sand filter and the first inch would be 
treated with the excess running to two large underground detention pipes and then discharged to the creek. The 
plan follows the Post Construction Ordinance.  
 
Mr. Blodgett noted the potential for pedestrian customers and asked if they’d consider a sidewalk connection 
through the site. Mr. Burton said they’d looked into that but between the topography and large drainage feature 
it’s not feasible.  
 
Mr. Blodgett said the parking at the Levine Senior Center is rather limited and asked the applicant to consider a 
relationship with the center regarding off hours parking. Mr. Chapman said their busiest days are Saturday and 
Sunday and didn’t think there’d be a problem with that. 
 
Mayor Taylor asked about the appearance of the building relative to Matthews Township Parkway and Mr. Burton 
explained it would sit about five feet below the road. The mayor asked about the view from the senior center and 
Mr. Burton noted the site is heavily wooded and didn’t think the nursery would be visible from that location. The 
mayor asked staff to provide the Board with drop and distance measurements before the next meeting.  
 
Mr. Ross asked about signage and Mr. Carmichael explained they have not pursued signage yet but they would 
be in accordance with the ordinance. Mr. Chapman said he would prefer a sign on the corner rather than on 
Devore Lane and Mr. Ross asked for detailed signage information to be fleshed out before the next meeting.  
 
Mr. Query asked about screening for the greenhouses. Mr. Chapman said the front façade will have glass walls 
and the greenhouses should always be packed with plant materials but the tree buffer around the facility will offer 
the most screening. Mr. Query commented that greenhouses can sometimes look disorderly and requested more 
information on the greenery that will be covering the glass.  
 
Mayor Taylor opened the floor to public comment. No one spoke in favor of or opposition to this application.  
 
The application will be reviewed by the Planning Board on November 24 and will come back to the Board of 
Commissioners for decision on December 14.  
 
 
RECONVENE REGULAR MEETING 

Motion by Mr. Miller to reconvene the regular meeting. The motion was seconded by Mr. Higdon and unanimously 
approved.  

 

4 
 



Board of Commissioners 
November 9, 2015 

PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT BUSINESS 

 
REPORT FROM PLANNING BOARD  
 
Planning Board Chair Steve Lee gave a report on the Board’s activities of October 27, 2015 (Exhibit #1 hereby 
referenced and made a part of these minutes). 
 
 
PLANNING AND ZONING RELATED ACTIONS 

 
Application 2015-631/PetSuites: To change the zoning from B-H to B-D on that certain zoning district located at 
11325 Independence Boulevard and being property belonging to Armors, Inc., and further being designated as 
Tax Parcel 215-101-03, to allow for a commercial kennel 
 
Motion by Mr. Query to deny application 2015-631 as it is not consistent with the Land Use Plan and it’s not 
reasonable since the location is directly across from a residential area and historic house. The motion was 
seconded by Mr. Fossett and passed 5-2 with Higdon and Miller opposed. Application 2015-631 was denied.  
 
 
Application 2015-637/text amendment: To amend the existing text of the Unified Development Ordinance 
regarding Building Bulk and Massing to add “required landscape areas, and up to 25 feet of driveway width, may 
be excluded from the lot frontage calculation.” 
 
Motion by Mr. Ross to approve application 2015-637 as it is reasonable and consistent with the Matthews Land 
Use Plan and other Town plans. The motion was seconded by Mr. Melton and unanimously approved.  
 
 
Application 2015-638/text amendment: To amend the existing text of the Unified Development Ordinance to add 
footnote (3) to Line Item 8 “Minimum side yard interior (ft)”, Table 155.604.2. 
 
Mr. Camp explained that the application suggested new text after the public hearing and Planning Board review. 
Staff is comfortable with the concept but would like additional time to clarify language and ensure there are no 
issues.  
 
Motion by Mr. Higdon to defer to December 14, 2015. The motion was seconded by Mr. Fossett and unanimously 
approved.  
 
 
Application 2015-632/Primrose School: To change the zoning classification from I-1 to O(CD) on that certain 
property designated as 720 Park Center Drive, being property belonging to Matthews Parkway Corporate Center, 
LLC, and further being designated as Tax Parcel 193-243-07 
 
Mayor Taylor noted the applicants have requested a deferral to allow time to continue working on revisions 
prompted by the public hearing. Town Attorney Charles Buckley noted that the changes are substantial enough to 
require a new public hearing. 
 
Motion by Mr. Miller to defer to December 14, 2015 to call for a new public hearing for January 11, 2016. The 
motion was seconded by Mr. Higdon and unanimously approved.  
 
 

5 
 



Board of Commissioners 
November 9, 2015 

Application 2015-636/Lakenheath Lane: To change the zoning from R-20 to R-15 on that certain property 
belonging to William and Lisa Browning and designated as 608 Lakenheath Lane, Matthews, NC 28105, and 
further identified as Tax Parcel 227-032-02 
 
Motion by Mr. Miller to approve application 2015-636 as it is reasonable and consistent with the Land Use Plan 
and the zoning change is consistent with the surrounding neighborhood. The motion was seconded by Mr. 
Fossett and unanimously approved. 
 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT  
 
None 
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA  

A. Approve Minutes of the October 26, 2015 Meeting 
B. Approve Changes to Personnel Policy 
C. Approve Job Description for Fire & EMS Deputy Chief Position 
D. Approve Resolution Adding Charles Buckley Way to the Town’s Street System 
E. Adopt Ordinance Establishing the Maximum Speed Limit and Posting of Stop Signs for Charles 

Buckley Way 
F. Cancel December 28, 2015 Board of Commissioners Meeting  
G. Accept Zoning Application 2015-640: Team Church and National Heritage Academies; Mount 

Harmony Church and Stevens Mill Roads; from R/I(CD) and R/15 to R/I(CD) Change of Conditions 
and R-15(CD), and set the public hearing for January 11, 2016 

H. Approve Tax Refunds 
 
Motion by Mr. Melton to approve consent agenda items A through H. The motion was seconded by Mr. Ross and 
unanimously approved.   
 

 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
REPORT ON COMMUNITY CENTER ROOF 
 
Mr. Blodgett reported that bids were opened on October 22. There was one bid received from ARC Contracting. 
Staff performed due diligence to determine if the bidder was both responsive and responsible. This bid did not 
meet both those tests: the paperwork submitted included some deficiencies and satisfactory answers to follow-up 
questions were not given. There were also some concerns brought up during reference checks – one structural 
engineer said he couldn’t give the contractor a positive recommendation and some other references didn’t 
remember the contractor. Based on that and the contractor’s lack of experience with historical renovations, staff 
recommends rejecting this bid.  
 
This project is being funded through tourism funds. There is not enough in the bank so the Town would borrow 
funds and pay it back through tourism funds. The Board has three options: rebid the project, use the construction 
manager at risk process or award the bid to the bidder previously discussed.  
 
Mayor Taylor asked what would happen if the project was rebid and no one bid on it. Architect Frank Williams 
said that was a possibility. If so then the second option might be the next step. He suggested making one last 
effort at advertising. Mr. Higdon asked about the bid advertisement process. Mr. Williams explained it is printed in 
multiple places in a clearinghouse of sorts. Mr. Fossett suggested using the state’s eBid process which attracts a 

6 
 



Board of Commissioners 
November 9, 2015 

board spectrum and doesn’t cost anything. Mr. Buckley noted the Board could include that directive by resolution 
for this project now and approve an umbrella resolution for all future projects at another meeting.  
 
Motion by Mr. Ross to reject the existing bid, saying the Community Center is a beloved, cherished building with 
many challenges but he is not comfortable with this contractor based on the feedback received by staff. The 
motion was seconded by Mr. Melton and unanimously approved. The bid from ARC Contracting was rejected.  
 
Motion by Mr. Melton to rebid the project as is, authorize the use of the eBid process in addition to other methods 
and to set the new schedule so the bids can come back to the Board on December 14, 2015. The motion was 
seconded by Mr. Higdon and unanimously approved.  
 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
ESTABLISH PRIORITY LIST FOR DIRTWAY TRAILS 
 
Parks, Recreation and Cultural Resources Director Corey King explained the request for the Board to approve the 
draft list as presented or make changes. By consensus the Board agreed with the drafted prioritization list. Mr. 
King noted that some of the Heritage Trail is being worked on by the Planning Department so portions of that may 
be done first. Mayor Taylor asked that he keep the Board informed about that or any other changes. Mr. Blodgett 
noted that the first listed segment is included in the CIP and noted that the second is going to be a portion of the 
Carolina Thread Trail and will be expensive. 
 
 
RECEIVE RFP FOR DEVELOPMENT LOT ON MATTHEWS STATION STREET 
 
Mr. Buckley commented that having Lat Purser bid is an advantage since he and the Town have an existing 
development agreement in place which can be used for this project as well. 
 
Lat Purser of Lat Purser & Associates, Inc. briefly reviewed the proposal. Mr. Ross asked about the existing 
charging station and Mr. Purser explained there are no plans to remove it.  
 
Mr. Higdon questioned the cost for the commercial appraisal - $2,400 - and Mr. Blodgett explained that it was the 
lowest of the three bids received.  
 
Motion by Mr. Miller to approve funds in the amount of $2,400 for a commercial appraisal for the vacant lot at 122 
Matthews Station Street. The motion was seconded by Mr. Melton and unanimously approved.  
 
 
APPROVE BUDGET ORDINANCE AMENDMENT TO ROLL FORWARD FUND BALANCE TO 
ACCOMMODATE APPROPRIATIONS IN THE AMOUNT OF $701,450 
 
Motion by Mr. Query to approve the budget ordinance amendment as presented. The motion was seconded by 
Mr. Fossett and unanimously approved.  
 

 
MAYOR’S REPORT 
 
Mayor Taylor reported that he spoke to Representative Bill Brawley regarding the fight against the HOT lanes in 
the northern part of the county. There are people in opposition and there will probably be efforts made to 
challenge the contract, which would prompt a penalty of about $100 million. He said if there is any effort to move 

7 
 



Board of Commissioners 
November 9, 2015 

forward with that challenge it should come from the northern towns, not Matthews. The penalty fees would affect 
many projects in Matthews.  
 
Mayor Taylor also noted that the grand opening of Charles Buckley Way is scheduled for the following day, the 
American Legion will hold a Veteran’s Day ceremony on November 11 and the second annual Pawsitively 
Matthews will occur on November 14. 
 
 
ATTORNEY’S REPORT 
 
Mr. Buckley expressed his deep gratitude to the Board and the people of Matthews for the permanent recognition 
offered to him by the installation of Charles Buckley Way.  
 
 
TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT 
  
Mr. Blodgett spoke about Assistant Town Manager Jamie Justice, explaining that he’s been a great asset to the 
Town and Matthews has been lucky to have him for seven years.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
Motion by Mr. Miller to adjourn. The motion was seconded by Mr. Ross and unanimously approved.  The meeting 
adjourned at 9:41 pm.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Lori Canapinno 
Town Clerk 
 
 

8 
 



 

 
Economic Development Advisory Committee (EDAC) Appointments    
      
DATE:   November 5, 2015 
RE:   Economic Development Advisory Committee (EDAC) Appointments  
FROM: Jamie Justice, Assistant Town Manager 
 
 
 
Background/Issue:   
 
The Town Board’s Economic Development Advisory Committee (EDAC) has four members whose 
terms are ending.  The four members requested to be re-appointed and they are Paul Jamison, Russ 
Gill, Bev Martin, and Steve Thomson.           
 
According to the process outlined in the EDAC By-laws, the Chair and staff liaison make a 
recommendation for appointment to the Town Board for approval.  Chair Paul Jamison and I 
recommend re-appointing the four members.  All four are active members of EDAC and participate 
fully on the committee.  Co-Chair Tim Jones concurs with the recommendation to re-appoint the four 
members.             
 
 
Proposal/Solution: 
 
Re-appoint Paul Jamison, Russ Gill, Bev Martin, and Steve Thomson for two-year terms from 
January 2016 to January 2018.   
 
 
Financial Impact: 
 
None 
 
 
Related Town Goal:  
 
Economic Development/Land Use Planning   
 
 
Recommended Action:  
 
Re-appoint Paul Jamison, Russ Gill, Bev Martin, and Steve Thomson for two-year terms from 
January 2016 to January 2018.   
 
 

 



















































































 

 
 
 
 MEMORANDUM  
 

To:  Mayor and Board of Commissioners  
From:  Shana Robertson, Finance Department 
CC:  Hazen Blodgett, Town Manager  
Date:  November 23, 2015 
Re:  Tax Refunds  
 

 
The Interlocal Agreement between Mecklenburg County and the Town of Matthews states they bill and collect the 
Ad Valorem taxes for Matthews. Upon collection, the County remits those to the Town. Matthews is responsible 
for issuing the refund if an adjustment occurs on the tax bill after the payment has been received. Refunds are 
issued for various reasons.  
 
Mecklenburg County Tax Office has submitted the attached list of taxpayers for refunds. The list reflects the tax 
year, taxpayer, location, adjustment made and reason for adjustment, along with the refund amount. G.S. 105 
requires that tax refunds or releases shall be approved by the governing body.  
 
These reports reflect tax appeals, settlements, and adjustments made, as received from the Mecklenburg County 
Tax Office.  
 
Total returns: $24,424.83 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Recommendation: The Mayor and Board of Commissioners approve the tax refunds. 

 



PAGE 1 of 1 

Tax 
Year

Bill Number Parcel # Source 
Type

Adjustment # Adjustment 
Reason

Date of 
Adjustment

Refund Recipient 
Name

Address Line 1 Address Line 2 City State Zip Code Payment Date for 
Interest 
Calculation

Total Refund ($) Total Interest to Pay if 
mailed on or before 
12/4/2015 ($)

8818 2011 0001932888-2011-2011-0000-00 19321109 REI 488146 BER SL362 Decision 8/27/2015 WOOLF, STEVEN H 10729 CHESTNUT HILLS DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 294.33 57.58 351.91
8818 2012 0001932888-2012-2012-0000-00 19321109 REI 488149 BER SL362 Decision 8/27/2015 WOOLF, STEVEN H 10729 CHESTNUT HILLS DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 294.33 42.74 337.07
8818 2013 0001932888-2013-2013-0000-00 19321109 REI 488152 BER SL362 Decision 8/27/2015 WOOLF, STEVEN H 10729 CHESTNUT HILLS DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 308.92 29.45 338.37
8818 2014 0001932888-2014-2014-0000-00 19321109 REI 488154 BER SL362 Decision 8/27/2015 WOOLF, STEVEN H 10729 CHESTNUT HILLS DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 308.92 14.05 322.97

128 -2-
2011 0001932976-2011-2011-0000-00 19322109 REI 488077 BER SL362 Decision 8/27/2015 MARTIN MARIETTA 

MATERIALS INC
PO BOX 30013 RALEIGH NC 27622 1/6/2012 102.55 20.06

122.61

128 -2-
2012 0001932976-2012-2012-0000-00 19322109 REI 488078 BER SL362 Decision 8/27/2015 MARTIN MARIETTA 

MATERIALS INC
PO BOX 30013 RALEIGH NC 27622 1/8/2013 102.55 14.89

117.44

128 -2-
2013 0001932976-2013-2013-0000-00 19322109 REI 488082 BER SL362 Decision 8/27/2015 MARTIN MARIETTA 

MATERIALS INC
PO BOX 30013 RALEIGH NC 27622 1/7/2014 107.63 10.26

117.89

128 -2-
2014 0001932976-2014-2014-0000-00 19322109 REI 488085 BER SL362 Decision 8/27/2015 MARTIN MARIETTA 

MATERIALS INC
PO BOX 30013 RALEIGH NC 27622 1/6/2015 107.63 4.89

112.52
8819 2011 0001933446-2011-2011-0000-00 19328236 REI 487955 BER SL362 Decision 8/27/2015 BEATY ENTERPRISES LTD PO BOX 7224 CHARLOTTE NC 28241-7224 1/6/2012 44.47 8.70 53.17
8819 2012 0001933446-2012-2012-0000-00 19328236 REI 487949 BER SL362 Decision 8/27/2015 BEATY ENTERPRISES LTD PO BOX 7224 CHARLOTTE NC 28241-7224 1/8/2013 44.47 6.46 50.93
8819 2013 0001933446-2013-2013-0000-00 19328236 REI 487951 BER SL362 Decision 8/27/2015 BEATY ENTERPRISES LTD PO BOX 7224 CHARLOTTE NC 28241-7224 1/7/2014 46.67 4.45 51.12
8819 2014 0001933446-2014-2014-0000-00 19328236 REI 487953 BER SL362 Decision 8/27/2015 BEATY ENTERPRISES LTD PO BOX 7224 CHARLOTTE NC 28241-7224 1/6/2015 46.67 2.12 48.79
8820 2011 0001933513-2011-2011-0000-00 19329145 REI 487816 BER SL362 Decision 8/26/2015 LJW LAND LLC 7620 BALTUSROL LN CHARLOTTE NC 28210 1/6/2012 232.32 45.45 277.77
8820 2012 0001933513-2012-2012-0000-00 19329145 REI 487817 BER SL362 Decision 8/26/2015 LJW LAND LLC 7620 BALTUSROL LN CHARLOTTE NC 28210 1/8/2013 232.32 33.73 266.05
8820 2013 0001933513-2013-2013-0000-00 19329145 REI 487818 BER SL362 Decision 8/26/2015 LJW LAND LLC 7620 BALTUSROL LN CHARLOTTE NC 28210 1/7/2014 243.84 23.25 267.09
8820 2014 0001933513-2014-2014-0000-00 19329145 REI 487819 BER SL362 Decision 8/26/2015 LJW LAND LLC 7620 BALTUSROL LN CHARLOTTE NC 28210 1/6/2015 243.84 11.09 254.93

3838
2011 0001933682-2011-2011-0000-00 19331123 REI 482918 BER SL362 Decision 8/21/2015 SOUDER PROPERTIES INC 4614-B WIL GROVEMINT-HILL 

RD
CHARLOTTE NC 28227 1/6/2012 2,192.52 428.89

2,621.41

8821
2011 0001934065-2011-2011-0000-00 19332232 REI 491023 BER SL362 Decision 9/4/2015 RAINBOW TROUT 

PROPERTIES LLC
2817 BELVEDERE AVE CHARLOTTE NC 28205 1/6/2012 1,674.03 327.47

2,001.50

8821
2012 0001934065-2012-2011-0000-00 19332232 REI 490508 BER SL362 Decision 9/4/2015 RAINBOW TROUT 

PROPERTIES LLC
2817 BELVEDERE AVE CHARLOTTE NC 28205 7/19/2013 594.39 70.68

665.07

8821
2012 0001934065-2012-2012-0000-00 19332232 REI 490509 BER SL362 Decision 9/4/2015 RAINBOW TROUT 

PROPERTIES LLC
2817 BELVEDERE AVE CHARLOTTE NC 28205 1/8/2013 2,232.15 324.12

2,556.27

8821
2013 0001934065-2013-2013-0000-00 19332232 REI 490510 BER SL362 Decision 9/4/2015 RAINBOW TROUT 

PROPERTIES LLC
2817 BELVEDERE AVE CHARLOTTE NC 28205 1/7/2014 2,342.84 223.37

2,566.21

8821
2014 0001934065-2014-2014-0000-00 19332232 REI 490511 BER SL362 Decision 9/4/2015 RAINBOW TROUT 

PROPERTIES LLC
2817 BELVEDERE AVE CHARLOTTE NC 28205 1/6/2015 2,342.84 106.55

2,449.39
207 2011 0001936043-2011-2011-0000-00 19338197 REI 483066 BER SL362 Decision 8/21/2015 FIRST CITIZENS BANK & PO BOX 27131 RALEIGH NC 27611-7131 1/6/2012 140.36 27.46 167.82
207 2012 0001936043-2012-2012-0000-00 19338197 REI 483067 BER SL362 Decision 8/21/2015 FIRST CITIZENS BANK & PO BOX 27131 RALEIGH NC 27611-7131 1/8/2013 33.57 4.87 38.44
207 2013 0001936043-2013-2013-0000-00 19338197 REI 483068 BER SL362 Decision 8/21/2015 FIRST CITIZENS BANK & PO BOX 27131 RALEIGH NC 27611-7131 1/7/2014 35.24 3.36 38.60
207 2014 0001936043-2014-2014-0000-00 19338197 REI 483069 BER SL362 Decision 8/21/2015 FIRST CITIZENS BANK & PO BOX 27131 RALEIGH NC 27611-7131 1/6/2015 35.24 1.60 36.84

8822 2011 0002001238-2011-2011-0000-00 21502163 REI 487263 BER SL362 Decision 8/24/2015 HEMINGWAY, JANIE LEE 627 E MATTHEWS ST MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 27.22 5.32 32.54
8822 2012 0002001238-2012-2012-0000-00 21502163 REI 487264 BER SL362 Decision 8/24/2015 HEMINGWAY, JANIE LEE 627 E MATTHEWS ST MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 13.01 1.89 14.90
8822 2013 0002001238-2013-2013-0000-00 21502163 REI 487265 BER SL362 Decision 8/24/2015 HEMINGWAY, JANIE LEE 627 E MATTHEWS ST MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 13.65 1.30 14.95
8822 2014 0002001238-2014-2014-0000-00 21502163 REI 487266 BER SL362 Decision 8/24/2015 HEMINGWAY, JANIE LEE 627 E MATTHEWS ST MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 13.65 0.62 14.27
8823 2011 0002002000-2011-2011-0000-00 21509213 REI 490812 BER SL362 Decision 9/3/2015 HILL, GRADY REID 2403 MEDLIN RD MONROE NC 28112 1/6/2012 53.54 10.47 64.01
8823 2012 0002002000-2012-2012-0000-00 21509213 REI 490813 BER SL362 Decision 9/3/2015 HILL, GRADY REID 2403 MEDLIN RD MONROE NC 28112 1/8/2013 53.54 7.77 61.31
8823 2013 0002002000-2013-2013-0000-00 21509213 REI 490814 BER SL362 Decision 9/3/2015 HILL, GRADY REID 2403 MEDLIN RD MONROE NC 28112 1/7/2014 56.19 5.36 61.55
8823 2014 0002002000-2014-2014-0000-00 21509213 REI 490815 BER SL362 Decision 9/3/2015 HILL, GRADY REID 2403 MEDLIN RD MONROE NC 28112 1/6/2015 56.19 2.56 58.75
8824 2011 0002047797-2011-2011-0000-00 22706259 REI 487836 BER SL362 Decision 9/4/2015 LINDNER, MATTHEW T 1701 SHADOW FOREST DR MATTHEWS NC 28105-7225 1/6/2012 1,274.13 249.24 1,523.37
8824 2012 0002047797-2012-2012-0000-00 22706259 REI 487862 BER SL362 Decision 9/4/2015 LINDNER, MATTHEW T 1701 SHADOW FOREST DR MATTHEWS NC 28105-7225 1/8/2013 1,254.56 182.17 1,436.73
8824 2013 0002047797-2013-2013-0000-00 22706259 REI 487865 BER SL362 Decision 9/4/2015 LINDNER, MATTHEW T 1701 SHADOW FOREST DR MATTHEWS NC 28105-7225 1/9/2014 1,316.77 125.18 1,441.95
8824 2014 0002047797-2014-2014-0000-00 22706259 REI 487837 BER SL362 Decision 9/4/2015 LINDNER, MATTHEW T 1701 SHADOW FOREST DR MATTHEWS NC 28105-7225 1/6/2015 13.01 0.59 13.60

8825
2011 0002056326-2011-2011-0000-00 22760116 REI 482624 BER SL362 Decision 8/17/2015 PLEASANT RIDGE LLC 18636 STARCREEK DR SUITE 

G
CORNELIUS NC 28031 1/6/2012 24.20 4.73

28.93

7828 -1-
2012 0002056326-2012-2012-0000-00 22760116 REI 482583 BER SL362 Decision 8/17/2015 LENNAR CAROLINAS LLC 14120 BALLANTYNE 

CORPORATE PLACE
CHARLOTTE NC 28277 1/8/2013 77.44 11.24

88.68
8826 2013 0002056326-2013-2013-0000-00 22760116 REI 482541 BER SL362 Decision 8/17/2015 CULBERSON DAVID 2427 HAMLET CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 140.97 13.44 154.41
8826 2014 0002056326-2014-2014-0000-00 22760116 REI 482543 BER SL362 Decision 8/17/2015 CULBERSON DAVID 2427 HAMLET CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 140.97 6.41 147.38
8827 2013 0002056332-2013-2013-0000-00 22760122 REI 487679 BER SL362 Decision 9/4/2015 JUOPPERI, BRADLEY 2539 HAMLET CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 215.58 20.55 236.13
8827 2014 0002056332-2014-2014-0000-00 22760122 REI 487704 BER SL362 Decision 9/4/2015 JUOPPERI, BRADLEY 2539 HAMLET CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 215.58 9.80 225.38
8828 2013 0002056334-2013-2013-0000-00 22760124 REI 483064 BER SL362 Decision 8/21/2015 FERGUSON, THOMAS A 2611 HAMLET CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 74.30 7.08 81.38
8828 2014 0002056334-2014-2014-0000-00 22760124 REI 483065 BER SL362 Decision 8/21/2015 FERGUSON, THOMAS A 2611 HAMLET CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 74.30 3.38 77.68
8829 2011 0002056335-2011-2011-0000-00 22760125 REI 487809 BER SL362 Decision 8/27/2015 TUTTON, DARYL MARK 1932 KINGS MANOR CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 127.96 25.03 152.99
8829 2012 0002056335-2012-2012-0000-00 22760125 REI 487811 BER SL362 Decision 8/27/2015 TUTTON, DARYL MARK 1932 KINGS MANOR CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 127.96 18.58 146.54
8830 2014 0002056344-2014-2014-0000-00 22760134 REI 483156 BER SL362 Decision 8/21/2015 HORN, KENNETH R 1802 KINGS MANOR CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 34.93 1.59 36.52
8831 2014 0002056350-2014-2014-0000-00 22760140 REI 483004 BER SL362 Decision 8/21/2015 DESAI, DEVANG I 1905 KINGS MANOR CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 6.04 0.27 6.31
8832 2013 0002056355-2013-2013-0000-00 22760145 REI 487815 BER SL362 Decision 9/4/2015 RUSSELL, JOHN W 2428 HAMLET CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 114.30 10.90 125.20
8832 2014 0002056355-2014-2014-0000-00 22760145 REI 490537 BER SL362 Decision 9/4/2015 RUSSELL JOHN W 2428 HAMLET CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 109.85 5.00 114.85

20,014.48 2,578.05 22,592.53



Bill Number BOCC Month Parcel #
Source 
Type Adjustment # Adjustment Reason

Date Of 
Adjustment Refund Recipient Name Address Line 1 Address Line 2 City State Zip Code

Payment Date 
For Interest Total Refund

 Int if pd by 
12/4/2015 

0001932261-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 19312111 REI 452165 SL 362 Adjustment 7/5/2015 DAVID JAMES PITRE & DIANE RUTH PITRE 6116 GREYSTONE DR MATTHEWS NC 28104 1/6/2012 29.34                   5.74 35.08          
0001932264-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 19312112 REI 452166 SL 362 Adjustment 7/5/2015 PITRE DAVID JAMES 6116 GREYSTONE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 36.00                   7.04 43.04          
0001932358-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 19313205 REI 452168 SL 362 Adjustment 7/5/2015 WILLIAM & DELESIA JONES 2614 LAKEVIEW CIR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 1.51                      0.30 1.81             
0001932369-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 19313211 REI 452169 SL 362 Adjustment 7/5/2015 MICHAEL L. PHILYAW & ARDYTH M. PHILYAW 7100 WRENTREE DR CHARLOTTE NC 28210 1/6/2012 2.72                      0.53 3.25             
0001932396-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 19313317 REI 455231 SL 362 Adjustment 7/11/2015 GINGER, JEROME G 5317 WOODRUN ON TILLERY MOUNT GILEAD NC 27306-9510 1/6/2012 0.60                      0.12 0.72             
0001932414-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 19313329 REI 452170 SL 362 Adjustment 7/5/2015 ANSELMO MONTANEZ & EDNA MONTANEZ & LIBBY FREEMAN & RONALD FREEMAN JR 2836 LAKEVIEW CR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 0.61                      0.12 0.73             
0001932466-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 19314110 REI 452171 SL 362 Adjustment 7/5/2015 DONALD W & GAYLE B AUSTIN 115 PINE LAKE DR MONROE NC 28110 1/6/2012 6.96                      1.36 8.32             
0001932476-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 19314116 REI 452172 SL 362 Adjustment 7/5/2015 EDWARD & TERESA PLYLER 625 HOPEWELL CHURCH RD MONROE NC 28110 1/6/2012 0.31                      0.06 0.37             
0001932505-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 19314145 REI 452179 SL 362 Adjustment 7/5/2015 PALACIOS, EVELYN PHIFER 3436 SAM NEWELL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 2/3/2012 7.77                      1.49 9.26             
0001932573-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 19315104 REI 452187 SL 362 Adjustment 7/5/2015 HAIGLER, KAY B 3108 SAM NEWELL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 1.51                      0.30 1.81             
0001932591-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 19315112 REI 452188 SL 362 Adjustment 7/5/2015 HARRELSON, TIMOTHY KYLE 2549 KEZIAH RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 1.51                      0.30 1.81             
0001932643-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 19317122 REI 452189 SL 362 Adjustment 7/5/2015 CHRISTOPHER & CRISTY DELLINGER 15200 MILLVIEW TRACE LN CHARLOTTE NC 28227 1/6/2012 0.30                      0.06 0.36             
0001932655-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 19317130 REI 452190 SL 362 Adjustment 7/5/2015 ESTATE OF MARSHALL MELVIN LINDSAY 2504 BOUNDARY ST BELMONT NC 28012 1/6/2012 0.60                      0.12 0.72             
0001933663-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 19331107 REI 452192 SL 362 Adjustment 7/5/2015 HONDROS, JOHN 1101 MILTON HALL PL CHARLOTTE NC 28270 1/6/2012 1.82                      0.36 2.18             
0001934002-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 19332101 REI 452193 SL 362 Adjustment 7/5/2015 JOSE SINCHI & VICTORIA SINCHI & HIPOLITO MOREL & ALMEIDA MOREL 5703 PARK STONE DR MATTHEWS NC 28104 1/6/2012 0.30                      0.06 0.36             
0001934012-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 19332111 REI 452194 SL 362 Adjustment 7/5/2015 GAYLYN & LEONA BONJOUR 1401 MARJORIE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 0.30                      0.06 0.36             
0001934039-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 19332211 REI 455236 SL 362 Adjustment 7/11/2015 POWELL, ROBERT GUY III PO BOX 1593 MATTHEWS NC 28106-1593 1/6/2012 0.91                      0.18 1.09             
0001934059-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 19332228 REI 452195 SL 362 Adjustment 7/5/2015 BELK, LOIS H 15809 IDLEWILD RD INDIAN TRAIL NC 28079 1/6/2012 0.91                      0.18 1.09             
0001934098-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 19332304 REI 452197 SL 362 Adjustment 7/5/2015 GULLEDGE, PEGGY S 3133 ZELDA LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 9.07                      1.77 10.84          
0001934133-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 19333121 REI 452198 SL 362 Adjustment 7/5/2015 RODRIGUEZ, CINDY C 1200 JERRY LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 1.82                      0.36 2.18             
0001934134-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 19333122 REI 452199 SL 362 Adjustment 7/5/2015 ESTATE OF THOMAS HOMER ELROD 9709 RODANTHE PL HUNTERSVILLE NC 28078-7651 1/6/2012 0.30                      0.06 0.36             
0001934946-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 19334144 REI 452214 SL 362 Adjustment 7/5/2015 LINDA MULLIS HOLSTON & LEONARD MULLIS JR 8416 JUNCTION CT CHARLOTTE NC 28215 1/6/2012 0.30                      0.06 0.36             
0001936071-2011-2011-0000-00 8/1/2014 19339210 REI 438518 SL 362 Adjustment 5/10/2015 BEARD, CHRISTIANA G 132 SLOANE SQUARE WY CHARLOTTE NC 28211 1/6/2012 0.91                      0.18 1.09             
0001936167-2011-2011-0000-00 8/1/2014 19339269 REI 438520 SL 362 Adjustment 5/10/2015 HOLZLOHNER, DONNA 2116 ANNECY DR MATTHEWS NC 28105-8388 1/6/2012 0.60                      0.12 0.72             
0001936177-2011-2011-0000-00 8/1/2014 19339273 REI 438521 SL 362 Adjustment 5/10/2015 FRANCIS INVESTMENT GROUP LLC 7403 OLD OAK LN CHARLOTTE NC 28227 1/6/2012 2.12                      0.41 2.53             
0001936182-2011-2011-0000-00 8/1/2014 19339277 REI 438522 SL 362 Adjustment 5/10/2015 LOPEZ, EVELYN S 384 MISTY OAKS RUN CASSELBERRY FL 32707 1/6/2012 1.51                      0.30 1.81             
0001936301-2011-2011-0000-00 8/1/2014 19340176 REI 438524 SL 362 Adjustment 5/10/2015 DAVID S MULHERIN & MARIANNE MULHERIN 67 TURNPIKE RD TURNER FALLS MA 1376 1/6/2012 0.60                      0.12 0.72             
0001936385-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 19340249 REI 452215 SL 362 Adjustment 7/5/2015 JAMES N & KATHEY W ALEXANDER 4700 SPICEWOOD DR CHARLOTTE NC 28227 1/6/2012 5.75                      1.12 6.87             
0001936393-2011-2011-0000-00 8/1/2014 19340253 REI 438526 SL 362 Adjustment 5/10/2015 COX, RICHARD L 2002 CECILE ST KISSIMMEE FL 34741-4304 1/6/2012 3.02                      0.59 3.61             
0001937383-2014-2014-0000-00 9/1/2014 19343203 REI 441510 SL 362 Adjustment 5/20/2015 TOWN OF MATTHEWS 232 MATTHEWS STATION ST MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 3.18                      0.14 3.32             
0001937383-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 19343203 REI 452222 SL 362 Adjustment 7/5/2015 QUERY, O GRADY PO BOX 628 FOLLY BEACH SC 29439 4/20/2012 3.14                      0.57 3.71             
0001937383-2012-2012-0000-00 9/1/2014 19343203 REI 452398 SL 362 Adjustment 7/5/2015 TOWN OF MATTHEWS . 232 MATTHEWS STATION ST MATTHEWS NC 28105 2/25/2013 3.10                      0.43 3.53             
0001937387-2011-2011-0000-00 8/1/2014 19343208 REI 453278 SL 362 Adjustment 8/4/2015 JINWRIGHT, ALONZO 2030 TANFIELD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 1.51                      0.30 1.81             
0001937454-2011-2011-0000-00 8/1/2014 19343306 REI 438529 SL 362 Adjustment 5/10/2015 JEFFREY & ALISON HAYNES 2130 TANFIELD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 1.51                      0.30 1.81             
0001937455-2011-2011-0000-00 8/1/2014 19343307 REI 438530 SL 362 Adjustment 5/10/2015 BEACH, GERALD T 18961 SUNNYBROOK CT SARATOGA CA 95070 1/6/2012 0.90                      0.18 1.08             
0001937457-2011-2011-0000-00 8/1/2014 19343309 REI 438531 SL 362 Adjustment 5/10/2015 FRAGAKIS, KYLE 2216 TANFIELD DR MATTHEWS NC 28105-0870 1/6/2012 1.82                      0.36 2.18             
0001937465-2011-2011-0000-00 8/1/2014 19343406 REI 438532 SL 362 Adjustment 5/10/2015 DUFRESNE, DESIREE D 2103 HADLEY CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 0.91                      0.18 1.09             
0001937488-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 19344102 REI 452223 SL 362 Adjustment 7/5/2015 SCOTT H. BLEVINS & ASHLEY L. BENTON 12864 HILL PINE RD MIDLAND NC 28107 1/6/2012 3.63                      0.71 4.34             
0001938090-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 19347105 REI 452224 SL 362 Adjustment 7/5/2015 MILLS, DONNA K 10425 BUCCANEER RD CHARLOTTE NC 28227 6/29/2012 0.64                      0.11 0.75             
0001938097-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 19347111 REI 452225 SL 362 Adjustment 7/5/2015 JOSEPH J BIONDO & AMY I BIONDO 106 COTTONWOOD DR WILLIAMSBURG NY 14221 1/6/2012 0.30                      0.06 0.36             
0001938105-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 19347117 REI 455237 SL 362 Adjustment 7/11/2015 YATES, FAYE T PO BOX 1975 MATTHEWS NC 28106-1975 1/6/2012 2.73                      0.53 3.26             
0001938171-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 19347163 REI 452226 SL 362 Adjustment 7/5/2015 ESTATE OF JULIA HONEYCUTT THREATT 2237 MATTHEWS MINT HILL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105-4640 1/6/2012 4.54                      0.89 5.43             
0001939125-2013-2013-0000-00 8/1/2014 19353126 REI 439976 SL 362 Adjustment 5/10/2015 PLEASANTS, WILLIAM 2606 ASHBY WOODS DR UNIT R MATTHEWS NC 28105-1264 1/7/2014 4.45                      0.42 4.87             
0001939137-2011-2011-0000-00 8/1/2014 19353134 REI 438538 SL 362 Adjustment 5/10/2015 DAVID L MCDONALD & WENDY J  MCDONALD 2524 MACIE GLEN CT MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 0.91                      0.18 1.09             
0001939195-2011-2011-0000-00 8/1/2014 19353170 REI 438539 SL 362 Adjustment 5/10/2015 HENDERSON E LAFOND AND JEFFREY PAUL LAFOND JR 7235 FRIAR TUCK LN CHARLOTTE NC 28227 1/6/2012 0.30                      0.06 0.36             
0001939236-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 19353217 REI 452227 SL 362 Adjustment 7/5/2015 SEAGLE, CURTIS A 7431 LANCASHIRE DR MINT HILL NC 28227 1/6/2012 3.63                      0.71 4.34             
0001939238-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 19353219 REI 452228 SL 362 Adjustment 7/5/2015 AUTON, ASHLEY J 6815 WYNDBEND LN CHARLOTTE NC 28227 1/6/2012 1.81                      0.35 2.16             
0001992777-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 21302115 REI 451339 SL 362 Adjustment 7/4/2015 BENJAMIN & JULIANNE BASH 129 CHARING CROSS DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 0.30                      0.06 0.36             
0001992793-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 21302128 REI 451340 SL 362 Adjustment 7/4/2015 SANDY HOFFNER CLARK & CAROLINE SNIPES CLARK 417 STRATFORDSHIRE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 1.82                      0.36 2.18             
0001992797-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 21302131 REI 451341 SL 362 Adjustment 7/4/2015 CAROL FRANCIS GOODE 527 LYNDERHILL LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 2.42                      0.47 2.89             
0001992921-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 21302605 REI 451343 SL 362 Adjustment 7/4/2015 THOMAS DAVID & CATHERINE COWARD GRIMES 4 RIDGELAND STREET PINEHURST NC 28374 1/6/2012 4.84                      0.95 5.79             
0001992959-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 21302803 REI 451344 SL 362 Adjustment 7/4/2015 JACK & OPAL CLONTZ 826 STRATFORDSHIRE DR MATTHEWS NC 28106-2468 1/6/2012 0.61                      0.12 0.73             
0001992963-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 21302810 REI 451345 SL 362 Adjustment 7/4/2015 FULMER, HENRY A 700 STRATFORDSHIRE DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 3/7/2012 2.19                      0.41 2.60             
0002001356-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 21503240 REI 451356 SL 362 Adjustment 7/4/2015 LACEY M IRIAS 853 MATTHEWS SCHOOL RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 3.02                      0.59 3.61             
0002001357-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 21503241 REI 451357 SL 362 Adjustment 7/4/2015 EUBANKS, AMBER M 407 W PHIFER ST MONROE NC 28110 1/6/2012 2.11                      0.41 2.52             
0002001363-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 21503244 REI 451358 SL 362 Adjustment 7/4/2015 BARRUECO, LUZ 909 MATTHEWS SCHOOL  RD MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 2.11                      0.41 2.52             
0002001398-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 21503262 REI 451361 SL 362 Adjustment 7/4/2015 BARAJAS LILIAN SILVIA 1025 CRESTDALE CROSSING DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/11/2012 3.09                      0.60 3.69             
0002001428-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 21503305 REI 455345 SL 362 Adjustment 7/11/2015 HARE, LILLIAN N 428 AMIR CIR 5 MATTHEWS NC 28105-8904 1/6/2012 2.12                      0.41 2.53             
0002001441-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 21503312 REI 455346 SL 362 Adjustment 7/11/2015 TICE, KEVIN 9275 LEE HWY FINCASTLE VA 24090-4450 1/6/2012 1.82                      0.36 2.18             
0002001447-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 21503314 REI 451368 SL 362 Adjustment 7/4/2015 NORWELL PROPERTIES LLC 2629 FLAGSTICK DRIVE MATTHEWS NC 28104 1/6/2012 1.81                      0.35 2.16             
0002001449-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 21503315 REI 455477 SL 362 Adjustment 7/11/2015 WILSON, MELISSA 3901 OLD SALISBURY CONCORD RD KANNAPOLIS NC 28083-9698 1/6/2012 0.91                      0.18 1.09             
0002001452-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 21503317 REI 451369 SL 362 Adjustment 7/4/2015 NANCY & RICKY MCNIER 332 AMIR CIRCLE MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 1.21                      0.24 1.45             
0002001456-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 21503318 REI 451370 SL 362 Adjustment 7/4/2015 LES-SEL INVESTMENTS LLC 1687 CHICORA RD DUNN NC 28334 5/31/2013 3.10                      0.39 3.49             
0002001459-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 21503320 REI 455347 SL 362 Adjustment 7/11/2015 BLOXSOM, MARK K 8118 PALO VERDE RD IRVINE CA 92617-5304 1/6/2012 0.90                      0.18 1.08             
0002001462-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 21503322 REI 451372 SL 362 Adjustment 7/4/2015 JEREMY & STACI VREDEVELD 5512 JEWEL DR WAXHAW NC 28173 1/6/2012 0.61                      0.12 0.73             
0002001466-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 21503324 REI 451373 SL 362 Adjustment 7/4/2015 BRANTLY, JUSTIN 5 STONE ST WRIGHTSVILLE BEACH NC 28480 1/6/2012 0.60                      0.12 0.72             
0002001473-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 21503328 REI 451375 SL 362 Adjustment 7/4/2015 MILLER, MELISSA FARMER 246 AMIR CIR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 1.51                      0.30 1.81             
0002001479-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 21503333 REI 451376 SL 362 Adjustment 7/4/2015 KARLYN KORB & RICHARD KOSSE & PATRICIA KOSSE 12292 GADWELL PL INDIAN LAND SC 29707 1/6/2012 0.91                      0.18 1.09             
0002001480-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 21503334 REI 455348 SL 362 Adjustment 7/11/2015 MULLMANN, LEIGH A 4121 CEDAR POINT AVE MATTHEWS NC 28104-8738 1/6/2012 1.52                      0.30 1.82             
0002001495-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 21503342 REI 451377 SL 362 Adjustment 7/4/2015 HILARIO ALMAZO & VELAQUEZ VIEYRA 709 ABLOW DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 1.21                      0.24 1.45             
0002001498-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 21503343 REI 451378 SL 362 Adjustment 7/4/2015 JOSHUA & MARIA FELIX 31 PEARSALL AVENUE LYNNBROOK NY 11520 1/6/2012 1.21                      0.24 1.45             
0002001499-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 21503344 REI 455349 SL 362 Adjustment 7/11/2015 SURRATT, ROBERT 3005 FILLY DR INDIAN TRAIL NC 28079-5708 1/6/2012 1.81                      0.35 2.16             
0002001506-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 21503348 REI 451379 SL 362 Adjustment 7/4/2015 SIMMERMAN, CRYSTAL D 20 AMIR CR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 3.03                      0.59 3.62             
0002001516-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 21503354 REI 451380 SL 362 Adjustment 7/4/2015 DONAVAN & LISA GRANT 5111 POPLAR KNOLL DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 1.52                      0.30 1.82             
0002001536-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 21503363 REI 451381 SL 362 Adjustment 7/4/2015 STUART & HILDA CHASNOFF 10315 AUBURN TOP LN CHARLOTTE NC 28277 1/6/2012 1.52                      0.30 1.82             
0002001538-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 21503364 REI 451382 SL 362 Adjustment 7/4/2015 REID, KAREN MARIE 335 AMIR CR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 2.73                      0.53 3.26             
0002001558-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 21503372 REI 451386 SL 362 Adjustment 7/4/2015 NORTH CAROLINA HOUSING FINANCE AGENCY PO BOX 28066 RALEIGH NC 27611 1/6/2012 2.73                      0.53 3.26             
0002001562-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 21503374 REI 455350 SL 362 Adjustment 7/11/2015 LI, CHET 3927 MANOR HOUSE DR CHARLOTTE NC 28270-2267 1/6/2012 0.60                      0.12 0.72             
0002001577-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 21503380 REI 455351 SL 362 Adjustment 7/11/2015 GABALLA, MAHMOUD MOSTAFA 10534 STEELE TRACE CT CHARLOTTE NC 28278-6549 1/6/2012 0.61                      0.12 0.73             
0002002292-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 21512129 REI 451388 SL 362 Adjustment 7/4/2015 BETTY & DENNIS KENT 2631 BRIAR TRAIL CT MATTHEWS NC 28104-4243 1/6/2012 0.61                      0.12 0.73             
0002002306-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 21512140 REI 455352 SL 362 Adjustment 7/11/2015 TURLEY, MARTIN EDWARD 13122 GINOVANNI WAY MINT HILL NC 28227-1303 1/6/2012 3.93                      0.77 4.70             
0002002328-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 21512204 REI 451393 SL 362 Adjustment 7/4/2015 PAUL& CLAUDIA  AVRAM 1217 MORNINGSIDE MEADOW LN MATTHEWS NC 28104 1/6/2012 10.28                   2.01 12.29          
0002002334-2011-2011-0000-00 9/1/2014 21512209 REI 451394 SL 362 Adjustment 7/4/2015 ROBERT & SAENGPIRUN GEIGER PO BOX 691084 CHARLOTTE NC 28227 1/6/2012 1.52                      0.30 1.82             
0002003559-2014-2014-0000-00 10/1/2014 21520115 REI 262755 SL 362 Adjustment 12/20/2014 KENYON, BRENDA & KENYON, ROY 2232 KIMWAY DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 20.95                   0.95 21.90          
0002003559-2011-2011-0000-00 10/1/2014 21520115 REI 473962 SL 362 Adjustment 8/2/2015 WIGGS, LINDSEY T OUTEN & WIGGS, MAX CALVIN II 2500 CONNEMARA DRIVE MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 19.96                   3.90 23.86          
0002003559-2012-2012-0000-00 10/1/2014 21520115 REI 474778 SL 362 Adjustment 8/2/2015 WIGGS, LINDSEY T OUTEN & WIGGS, MAX CLAVIN II 2500 CONNEMARA DRIVE MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 19.96                   2.90 22.86          
0002003559-2013-2013-0000-00 10/1/2014 21520115 REI 475122 SL 362 Adjustment 8/2/2015 KENYON, BRENDA & KENYON, ROY 2232 KIMWAY DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 20.95                   2.00 22.95          
0002046538-2011-2011-0000-00 8/1/2014 22701380 REI 438899 SL 362 Adjustment 5/10/2015 OIKEMUS, DEBORAH M 371 PARK SQUARE PL MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 0.30                      0.06 0.36             
0002047496-2013-2013-0000-00 10/1/2014 22703655 REI 267083 SL 362 Adjustment 12/20/2014 GENETT, MATTHEW 501 WILLOWBROOK DR MATTHEW NC 28105 1/7/2014 37.14                   3.54 40.68          
0002047496-2014-2014-0000-00 10/1/2014 22703655 REI 268180 SL 362 Adjustment 12/20/2014 GENETT, MATTHEW 501 WILLOWBROOK DR MATTHEW NC 28105 1/6/2015 37.14                   1.69 38.83          
0002047496-2011-2011-0000-00 10/1/2014 22703655 REI 474092 SL 362 Adjustment 8/2/2015 HAGLER, BRIAN N 400 SHREWSBURY LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 35.39                   6.92 42.31          
0002047496-2012-2012-0000-00 10/1/2014 22703655 REI 474835 SL 362 Adjustment 8/2/2015 GENETT, MATTHEW 501 WILLOWBROOK DR MATTHEW NC 28105 1/8/2013 35.39                   5.14 40.53          
0002621983-2012-2012-0000-00 7/1/2014 22717223 REI 423486 SL 362 Adjustment 4/5/2015 ST. ANDREWS NC CONDOS, LLC 1711 BRANDON RD CHARLOTTE NC 28207 1/8/2013 80.84                   11.74 92.58          
0002621983-2013-2013-0000-00 7/1/2014 22717223 REI 423935 SL 362 Adjustment 4/5/2015 REID, ROBERT M 3325 ABBEY WALK LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 83.18                   7.93 91.11          
0002050255-2011-2011-0000-00 8/1/2014 22722341 REI 438902 SL 362 Adjustment 5/10/2015 VINSON, GWENDOLYN A 5312 POPLAR KNOLL DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 70.79                   13.85 84.64          
0002050290-2011-2011-0000-00 8/1/2014 22722372 REI 438904 SL 362 Adjustment 5/10/2015 WILLIAM R. SECHLER & JOANNA B. SECHLER 5419 POPLAR KNOLL DR MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 64.13                   12.54 76.67          
0002053036-2011-2011-0000-00 11/1/2014 22736257 REI 487845 SL 362 Adjustment 8/26/2015 HENRY RABINOVICH & SUSAN RABINOVICH 745 BARRINGTON PL MATTHEWS NC 28105-6553 1/6/2012 86.51                   16.92 103.43        
0002053036-2012-2012-0000-00 11/1/2014 22736257 REI 487848 SL 362 Adjustment 8/26/2015 HENRY RABINOVICH & SUSAN RABINOVICH 745 BARRINGTON PL MATTHEWS NC 28105-6553 1/8/2013 86.51                   12.56 99.07          
0002053036-2013-2013-0000-00 11/1/2014 22736257 REI 487850 Adjustment 8/26/2015 RABINOVICH HENRY S & 745 BARRINGTON PL MATTHEWS NC 28105-6553 1/7/2014 90.80                   8.66 99.46          
0002053036-2014-2014-0000-00 11/1/2014 22736257 REI 487851 SL 362 Adjustment 8/26/2015 HENRY RABINOVICH & SUSAN RABINOVICH 745 BARRINGTON PL MATTHEWS NC 28105-6553 1/6/2015 91.12                   4.14 95.26          
0002054531-2012-2012-0000-00 10/1/2014 22746153 REI 266416 SL 362 Adjustment 12/20/2014 RAMSEUR, JOHN D 1201 GATESHEAD LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/8/2013 122.82                 17.83 140.65        
0002054531-2013-2013-0000-00 10/1/2014 22746153 REI 267451 SL 362 Adjustment 12/20/2014 RAMSEUR, JOHN D 1201 GATESHEAD LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/7/2014 124.77                 11.90 136.67        
0002054531-2014-2014-0000-00 10/1/2014 22746153 REI 268571 SL 362 Adjustment 12/20/2014 RAMSEUR, JOHN D 1201 GATESHEAD LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2015 124.77                 5.67 130.44        
0002054531-2011-2011-0000-00 10/1/2014 22746153 REI 474194 SL 362 Adjustment 8/2/2015 RAMSEUR, JOHN D 1201 GATESHEAD LN MATTHEWS NC 28105 1/6/2012 127.36                 24.91 152.27        

1,612.61             219.69             1,832.30    



ORDINANCE NO. _________     BUDGET ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 
 
ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR THE TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH 
CAROLINA FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Matthews, 
North Carolina that the following amendments are made to the Budget Ordinance for the 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2016. 
 
 SECTION 1:  To amend the General Fund, the Revenues are to be changed as 
follows: 
        INCREASE DECREASE 
 
10000001-4820 POLICE DONATIONS  $3,200.40   
 
 SECTION 2:  To amend the General Fund, the Expenditures are to be changed 
as follows: 
        INCREASE DECREASE 
 
10431200-5812 OTHER EQUIP (A)   $3,200.40 
 

 SECTION 3:  The purpose of this amendment is to recognize special donation 
received from the residents of The Polo Club for the purchase of body cameras. 
 
 SECTION 4:   Copies of the budget amendment shall be delivered to the Budget 
Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction. 
 
 Adopted this the 23rd day of November 2015.  
 
 
 
 
    
 
 
            
      ______________________________ 
       James P. Taylor, Mayor 
 
 
        
            
      ______________________________ 
       Lori Canapinno, Town Clerk 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. _________     BUDGET ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 
 
ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR THE TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH 
CAROLINA FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Matthews, 
North Carolina that the following amendments are made to the Budget Ordinance for the 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2016. 
 
 SECTION 1:  To amend the General Fund, the Revenues are to be changed as 
follows: 
        INCREASE DECREASE 
 
10000001-4820 POLICE DONATIONS  $2,700.00   
 
 SECTION 2:  To amend the General Fund, the Expenditures are to be changed 
as follows: 
        INCREASE DECREASE 
 
10431200-5812 OTHER EQUIP (A)   $2,700.00 
 

 SECTION 3:  The purpose of this amendment is to recognize special donation 
received from the Chamber of Commerce for the purchase of body cameras. 
 
 SECTION 4:   Copies of the budget amendment shall be delivered to the Budget 
Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction. 
 
 Adopted this the 23rd day of November 2015.  
 
 
 
 
    
 
 
            
      ______________________________ 
       James P. Taylor, Mayor 
 
 
        
            
      ______________________________ 
       Lori Canapinno, Town Clerk 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. _________     BUDGET ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 
 
ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR THE TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH 
CAROLINA FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Matthews, 
North Carolina that the following amendments are made to the Budget Ordinance for the 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2016. 
 
 SECTION 1:  To amend the General Fund, the Revenues are to be changed as 
follows: 
        INCREASE DECREASE 
 
10000001-441802 HIDTA Shared Proceeds  $3,944.85 
 
 
 SECTION 2:  To amend the General Fund, the Expenditures are to be changed 
as follows: 
        INCREASE DECREASE 
 
10431200-5271 Federal Seized Funds   $3,944.85   
     
 

 SECTION 3:  The purpose of this amendment is to recognize shared proceeds 
received through DEA Task Force  
 
 SECTION 4:   Copies of the budget amendment shall be delivered to the Budget 
Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction. 
 
 Adopted this the 23rd day of November 2015.  
 
 
 
 
    
 
 
            
      ______________________________ 
       James P. Taylor, Mayor 
 
 
        
            
      ______________________________ 
       Lori Canapinno, Town Clerk 
 
 
 



ORDINANCE NO. _________     BUDGET ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 
 
ORDINANCE AMENDING THE BUDGET FOR THE TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH 
CAROLINA FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015-2016 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the Town of Matthews, 
North Carolina that the following amendments are made to the Budget Ordinance for the 
fiscal year ending June 30, 2016. 
 
 SECTION 1:  To amend the General Fund, the Revenues are to be changed as 
follows: 
        INCREASE DECREASE 
 
10000001-441802 HIDTA Shared Proceeds  $ 7,820.77 
10000001-441802 HIDTA Shared Proceeds  $    963.62 
10000001-441802 HIDTA Shared Proceeds  $20,014.25   
 
 
 SECTION 2:  To amend the General Fund, the Expenditures are to be changed 
as follows: 
        INCREASE DECREASE 
 
10431200-5271 Federal Seized Funds   $28,798.64   
     
 

 SECTION 3:  The purpose of this amendment is to recognize shared proceeds 
received through DEA Task Force  
 
 SECTION 4:   Copies of the budget amendment shall be delivered to the Budget 
Officer and the Finance Officer for their direction. 
 
 Adopted this the 23rd day of November 2015.  
 
 
 
 
    
 
 
            
      ______________________________ 
       James P. Taylor, Mayor 
 
 
        
            
      ______________________________ 
       Lori Canapinno, Town Clerk 
 
 



 



RESOLUTION DECLARING COST AND ORDERING PREPARATION OF 
PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT ROLL, AND SETTING TIME AND 

PLACE FOR PUBLIC HEARING ON PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT ROLL 
              

WHEREAS, the improvements to Oscar Drive, was ordered by Resolution of this Town 
Board duly passed on the 22nd day of June 2015, and has been completed in accordance 
therewith; and 

 
WHEREAS, the total cost of the project has been computed; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners of the Town 

of Matthews that: 
 
1. The total cost of the above-described project is hereby declared to be $44,000. 
 
2. The Town Clerk is hereby directed to prepare a Preliminary Assessment Roll 

showing the individual assessments upon the benefitted properties. 
 
3. The Town Clerk is hereby directed to make available during regular office hours, 

in her office, the Preliminary Assessment Roll for public inspection from that date through the 
14th day of December 2015. 

 
4. The Board of Commissioners will hold a public hearing at 7:00 p.m. on the 14th 

day of December 2015 at the Matthews Town Hall, 232 Matthews Station Street, Matthews, 
North Carolina 28105, for the purpose of hearing all interested persons. 

 
5. The Town Clerk is hereby directed to publish the required notice of the public 

hearing and, no later than ten (10) days before the public hearing, to mail by first-class mail 
copies of the notice to the owners of real property listed on the Preliminary Assessment Roll. 

 
RESOLVED, this the 23rd day of November 2015. 

 
 

             
      Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 
   
 
       
Town Clerk 
 



 2015 PLANNING CONFERENCE TO-DO LIST

orig
inal #

ITEM ASSIGNED
SHORT
60 days

MEDIUM
61-180 

days

LONG
181-300 

days NOTES

42
Tech: investigate quad screens on each side in Hood Room; monitor in reception area for overflow (primary); monitor in 
Jordan Room (secondary); preference for  petitioners/podium in front center of dias LC X Funding not included in FY 15-16 budget

45 Legislative agenda: add campaign signs issue – give towns authority to enforce regulations HB X

Rep. Brawley introduced H613 to allow town to regulate. Bill has passed House and is in the 
Senate's State and Local Committee. Did not pass. 

6 Market the Matthews Station lot; consider temporary uses KI X

Temporary uses are underway i.e. pop-up market; Town received a proposed from Lat Purser 
Associates. Appraisal is underway.

16 plan for future shade trees at Stumptown Park CK X Corey and landscaping staff have met on site. Plans have not been put to paper. 
20 draft (or communicate) wayfinding sign standards. Keep standard aspect ratio JT X Jen has reached out to Buzz Brizzell, our wayfinding contractor to get this information. 
32 Staff and CB to work together on list of eligible tourism fund projects HB X
33 Draft list of possible improvements for Stumptown Park related to festivals CK X

35 Develop a sportsplex marketing project that promotes Matthews businesses to visitors JT X A monitor promoting PRCR events is in operation at Community Center; Marketing program to be completed in December.
40 New website = high priority JT X Municipal CMS has been selected; Expected completion date is the late 2015/early 2016
41 MyMatthews app needs to be improved/made functional JT X No need for an app. The new website will be compatible with all mobile devices. 

7 update Warren Report charts by 2016/17. Internal. KI/JJ X List of charts to be updated has been shared with planning.
8 construct interactive road map with overlays: different colors for under construction (designate town vs state projects), PLANNING X GIS planner has been hired. The list of road projects has been shared.

11 Investigate less expensive options for park construction (scouts, etc.) CK X

30 Follow up on pavement degradation fee CJ X Ralph did not complete. Move to long-term CJ is new to the position
31 Can town employees sign off on street cuts before utility crew completes project? CJ X This would be covered in the degradation fee and an on-site inspector would monitor
37 Hwy 51 park: investigate Trailblazers for trail, gravel parking CK X Corey has reached out to Tarheel Trailblazers about building a trail. They are open to the idea.

3 add active community garden with gravel parking lot by spring 2016 - either rice road park or Hwy 51 park CK X $20,000 for Hwy 51 Park community garden (CIP)
5 staff to draft prioritized park list and possible grant opportunities CK X

9
educate public on paving options/answer questions about methods
(review with TB the planned paving schedule, which includes alternating full depth reclamation w/ other technologies) CJ X

COMPLETE

1 Establish priority list for trails. CK X

Corey has submitted list of trails with evaluation criteria. Approved by the Town Board at the Nov. 
9th meeting.

2 Community gardens: draft preference rules for Matthews residents CK X New rules shared with the Board on 8/19 by email.
4 research liability issues related to dog parks CK X Corey provided explanation to Board on 6/22

10 hold community meeting with property owners re: special assessment/Oscar Drive RM X Budget to be amended when decision made on Oscar Drive

12 research increasing performance bond payment KI X

 NCGA passed legislation that limits towns authority. Town staff has worked with our attorney to 
comply with the law. LUESA is enforcing the new performance bonds based on the new law.

13 can TB grant subdivision variances after subdivision is complete? KI X Yes; C. Buckley sent memo to TB on 3/9/15
14 do rate study of storm water fees; tiers/incremental increases RM X Ralph completed a rate study. Decided to postpone any recommendation until FY 16-17
15 submit to TB one page summary on differences between existing and draft bike/ped plans KI X New bike/ped plan adopted 5/11
17 add Fountain Rock Park to greenway maps CK X Done
18 show progress of Wayfinding to date JT X New directional signs approved by DOT 6/17
19 track down rogue signs; TB to review costs before signs are replaced JT X New Sportsplex and greenway trail signs have been installed
21 find out details of League's legislative action committee HB X Shared details w/Board on 6/16
22 Matthews 101: start in August? Send invitations to recent board/committee applicants JT X $1,500 (estimate) Matthews 101 included in Manager Dept. budget; 1st session in Sept. 
23 Give TB a list of properties with zoning classifications that are not in the UDO * how are the parks zoned now? KI X List of properties shared with the Town Board on 6/18/15
24 Manager to keep TB apprised of controversial Planning issues – no surprises HB X Manager has committed to keeping the Board apprised; Implemented a pre-development sessions
25 Ongoing projects pages on website needs to be kept current. Should be first source of new info to citizens JT X Project pages updated as of 6/19
26 Update TB on future mass transit plans RM X TB to be updated at 6/22 meeting

27
Planning/PB to draft list of top 10 infill projects in downtown – keep TB aware of possible areas that are right for infill 
development KI X Done; see list

28 Prioritize list of Small Area Plans; consider one for 74 corridor to town line KI X Top priority from list is East John St. SAP; included in Planning Dept. budget (in-kind)
29 Send draft Citizen Survey to TB, see if any questions need to be added JT X Draft survey sent to TB in early March
34 Get legal language of tourism fund statute to TB HB X Sent 5/22
36 Butler greenway: investigate dirtway instead of paved greenway CK X At the Nov. 9th meeting the Town Board endorsed the Butler greenway as a dirtway. Funding is shown is the 16-17 CIP.
39 Should library pay anything for façade and facility maintenance? HB X According to the lease they are responsible for 43% of the costs for maintenance of the bldg. 
43 Orient Planning Board and Board of Adjustment to UDO KI X PB reoriented 6/23; BOA reoriented 7/9
44 Paint the roof and floor of Stumptown Park stage and uplight the trees behind the stage CK X $8,000 in PRCR capital for uplighting trees. Painting stage floor completed. Uplighting expected by MA!



 

 

 
 
GFOA Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting 1998-Present. 

                                   

 

DATE:  November 18, 2015 
FROM: Christopher Tucker, Finance Director 
RE:  Audited Financial Statements for 11/23 Agenda 
 
 

Background/Issue: 
State law requires that each unit of local government shall have its accounts audited after the close of 
its each fiscal year by a certified public accountant. The Town’s financial statements have been 
audited by Martin Starnes & Associates, CPAs, P.A., a firm of certified public accountants. 
 
Proposal/Solution: 
Attached are the Town’s financial statements (audit report) for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015. 
All disclosures necessary for the reader to gain an understanding of the Town’s financial affairs are 
included. An examination of the financial data together with an evaluation of its presentation, allowed 
our independent auditors to conclude with an unmodified opinion that the financial statements present 
fairly, in conformity with GAAP, in all material respects, the financial position and activities of all Town 
funds. 
 
The Local Government Commission accepted the report as presented on November 16, 2015.  
 
Mr. Matt Braswell from Martin Starnes & Associates will be on hand to give a brief presentation on the 
results of the report. This presentation is fairly high level and does not present specific reasons for 
any particular movements. It is more of an opportunity for the firm to present to you the unmodified 
opinion that they are giving. I would ask that if you have specific questions to send them my way prior 
to the meeting if possible. 
 
The version you are reviewing is not a Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. Finance staff is 
currently finishing the additional information that is added to this version in order to submit to GFOA 
for achievement recognition. This additional information is not audited by the CPA, and should not 
hinder your decision to accept this version of the statements.  
  
Financial Impact: 
The Town’s overall net position decreased by $1,536,695 to $254,615,735, which is a 0.604% 
decrease attributed to depreciation of assets over increase in assets. 
 
The fund balance available for the General Fund was $5,882,292, or 30.87%, of the total General 
Fund expenditures and transfers to other funds for the fiscal year. 
 
The Town of Matthews’ total debt increased by $3,223,429 during the current fiscal year. 
 
The Town of Matthews increased fund balance of the Tourism Fund by $362,591 to $696,609. 
 
 



 

Related Town Goal and Strategy:  
Goal: Financial Performance - “To provide financial resources in a prudent and responsible manner 
through traditional and alternative sources of revenue, effective budgeting, and cost control with a 
focus on maintaining a healthy fund balance.” 
Strategy: #38. Implement the Financial Management Plan over the next 5 - 7 years with restoration of 
the fund balance per policy directive. 
 
Recommended Motion:  
Consider approval of the financial statements (audit report) as presented. 
 



 

 

 

 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2015 



Page
Financial Section

Independent Auditor's Report 1-3

Management's Discussion and Analysis 4-13

Basic Financial Statements
Exhibit

Government-Wide Financial Statements:

A Statement of Net Position 14

B Statement of Activities 15

Fund Financial Statements:

C Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds 16

D Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 17

E Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -
Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities 18

F Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balances - Budget and Actual - General Fund 19

Notes to the Financial Statements 20-45

Schedule
Required Supplemental Financial Data:

A-1 Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation
Allowance - Schedule of Funding Progress - 46
Required Supplementary Information

A-2 Law Enforcement Officers' Special Separation
Allowance - Schedule of Employer Contributions - 47
Required Supplementary Information

A-3 Other Post-Employment Benefits - 
Required Supplementary Information 48

TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

TABLE OF CONTENTS



TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Schedule Page
Required Supplemental Financial Data (continued):

A-4 Local Government Employees' Retirement System
Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability (Asset) - 49
Required Supplementary Information

A-5 Local Government Employees' Retirement System
Contributions - Required Supplementary Information 50

Supplementary Information:
General Fund:

1 Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balances - General Fund Consolidated 51

2 Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual - General Fund 52-55

3 Capital Reserve Fund - Recreation and Stormwater
Projects - Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures,
and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 56

Major Capital Project Fund:
4 Major Capital Project Fund - Capital Improvement Program -

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 57-58

Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds:
5 Nonmajor Special Revenue Fund - Tourism Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual 59

Additional Financial Data:
6 Schedule of Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable 60

7 Analysis of Current Year Levy 61

Compliance Section:
Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting And
On Compliance And Other Matters Based On An Audit
Of Financial Statements Performed In Accordance

 With Government Auditing Standards 62-63

Schedule of Findings, Responses, and Questioned Costs 64

Summary Schedule of Prior Year's Audit Findings 65



 

730 13th Avenue Drive SE ♦ Hickory, North Carolina 28602 ♦ Phone 828-327-2727 ♦ Fax 828-328-2324 
13 South Center Street ♦ Taylorsville, North Carolina 28681 ♦ Phone 828-632-9025 ♦ Fax 828-632-9085 

Toll Free Both Locations 1-800-948-0585 ♦ Website: www.martinstarnes.com 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 
 
 
To the Honorable Mayor and 
Members of the Town Council 
Town of Matthews, North Carolina 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Matthews, North Carolina, as of and for the 
year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise 
the Town’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.  
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.  
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 
internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates 
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 



 

 

Opinions  
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining 
fund information of the Town of Matthews, North Carolina, as of June 30, 2015, and the respective 
changes in financial position and the respective budgetary comparison for the General Fund for the year 
then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s 
Discussion and Analysis, the Law Enforcement Officer’s Special Separation Allowance and the Other 
Post-Employment Benefits’ Schedules of Funding Progress and Employer Contributions and the Local 
Government Employees’ Retirement System’s Schedules of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension 
Asset and Contributions be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, 
although not a required part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic 
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of 
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.  
 
Supplementary and Other Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the basic financial statements of the Town of Matthews, North Carolina.  The combining and 
individual fund statements, budgetary schedules, and other schedules, are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.   
 
The combining and individual fund statements, budgetary schedules, and other schedules are the 
responsibility of management and were derived from, and relate directly to, the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.  Such information has been subjected to 
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America.  In our opinion, the combining and individual fund statements, budgetary 
schedules, and other schedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole. 
 

2



 

 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards   
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 26, 
2015 on our consideration of the Town of Matthews’ internal control over financial reporting and on our 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, and 
other matters.  The purpose of the report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over 
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Town of Matthews’ 
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.  
 

 

Martin Starnes & Associates, CPAs, P.A. 
Hickory, NC 
October 26, 2015 
 

3



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page left blank intentionally. 



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 
 
As management of the Town of Matthews, we offer readers of the Town’s financial statements this 
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Town of Matthews for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2015.  We encourage readers to read the information presented here in conjunction with 
additional information that we have furnished in the Town’s financial statements, which follow this 
narrative. 
 
Financial Highlights 
 
 The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the Town of Matthews exceeded its liabilities and 

deferred inflows of resources at the close of the fiscal year by $254,615,735 (net position).   
 The Town’s net position decreased by $1,536,695, primarily due to net changes in fund balances, 

depreciation and reporting of pension deferrals.  At the close of the current fiscal year, the Town of 
Matthews’ governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $13,152,629, an  increase  
of $5,460,596 in comparison with the prior year.  Approximately 55.28% of this total amount, or 
$7,270,337, is non-spendable or restricted. 

 At the end of the current fiscal year, fund balance available for the General Fund was $5,882,292, or 
30.87%, of the total General Fund expenditures and transfers to other funds for the fiscal year. 

 The Town of Matthews’ total debt increased by $3,223,429 during the current fiscal year.  
 The Town of Matthews increased fund balance of the Tourism Fund by $362,591.  This was due to 

revenue growth, expenditure reduction and a transfer/refund for a capital project that did not 
commence.  This leaves an ending fund balance of $696,609 in fiscal year ending June 30, 2015.  The 
Town anticipates the fund to remain stable. 

 The Town holds a bond rating of AA+ with Standard & Poors and a bond rating of Aa2 with 
Moody’s Investors Service. 

 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Town of Matthews’ basic 
financial statements.  The Town’s financial statements consist of three components; 1) government-wide 
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements.  The basic 
financial statements present two different views of the Town through the use of government-wide 
statements and fund financial statements.  In addition to the basic financial statements, this report contains 
other supplemental information that will enhance the reader’s understanding of the financial condition of 
the Town of Matthews. 
 
 
 

4



Required Components of Annual Financial Report 

Figure 1 

 
 
 
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
            
             
 

 
Summary       Detail 

 
 

Basic Financial Statements 
 
The first two statements (Exhibits A and B) in the basic financial statements are the Government-Wide 
Financial Statements.  They provide both short and long-term information about the Town’s financial 
status. 
 
The next statements (Exhibits C through F) are Fund Financial Statements.  These statements focus on 
the activities of the individual parts of the Town’s government.  These statements provide more detail 
than that the government-wide statements.  There are two parts to the fund financial statements:  1) the 
governmental funds statements; and 2) the budgetary comparison statements. 
 
The next section of the basic financial statements is the Notes.  The notes to the financial statements 
explain in detail some of the data contained in the basic statements.  After the notes, Supplemental 
Information is provided to show details about the Town’s nonmajor governmental funds, which are 
combined in one column on the basic financial statements.  Budgetary information required by the 
General Statutes also can be found in this part of the statements. 
 
 

Management’s 

Discussion and 

Analysis 

Basic 

Financial 

Statements 

Government-Wide 

Financial 

Statements 

Fund 

Financial 

Statements 

Notes to the 

Financial 

Statements 

5



 

 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 
 
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide the reader with a broad overview of 
the Town’s finances, similar in format to a financial statement of a private-sector business.  The 
government-wide statements provide short and long-term information about the Town’s financial status as 
a whole. 
 
The two government-wide statements report the Town’s net position and how they have changed.  Net 
position is the difference between the Town’s total assets and total liabilities and total deferred inflows of 
resources.  Measuring net position is one way to gauge the Town’s financial condition. 
 
The government-wide statements consist only of governmental activities.  The governmental activities 
include all of the Town’s basic services, such as general administration, public safety, and public works.  
Property taxes and Federal and State grant funds finance most of these activities.   
 
The government-wide financial statements are on Exhibits A and B of this report. 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
The fund financial statements (see Figure 1) provide a more detailed look at the Town’s most significant 
activities.  A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that 
have been segregated for specific activities or objectives.  The Town of Matthews, like all other 
governmental entities in North Carolina, uses fund accounting to ensure and reflect compliance (or non-
compliance) with finance-related legal requirements, such as the General Statutes or the Town’s budget 
ordinance.  All of the funds of the Town of Matthews are governmental funds. 
 
Governmental Funds.  Governmental funds are used to account for those functions reported as 
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  All of the Town’s basic services are 
accounted for in governmental funds.  These funds focus on how assets can readily be converted into cash 
flow in and out, and what monies are left at year-end that will be available for spending in the next year.  
Governmental funds are reported using an accounting method called modified accrual accounting that 
provides a short-term spending focus.  As a result, the governmental fund financial statements give the 
reader a detailed short-term view that helps him or her determine if there are more or less financial 
resources available to finance the Town’s programs.  The relationship between governmental activities 
(reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds is 
described in a reconciliation that is a part of the fund financial statements. 
 
The Town of Matthews adopts an annual budget for its General Fund, as required by the General Statutes.  
The budget is a legally adopted document that incorporates input from the citizens of the Town, the 
management of the Town, and the decisions of the Board about which services to provide and how to pay 
for them.  It also authorizes the Town to obtain funds from identified sources to finance these current 
period activities.  The budgetary statement provided for the General Fund demonstrates how well the 
Town complied with the budget ordinance and whether or not the Town succeeded in providing the 
services as planned when the budget was adopted.  The budgetary comparison statement uses the 
budgetary basis of accounting and is presented using the same format, language, and classifications as the 
legal budget document.  The statement shows four columns:  1) the original budget as adopted by the 
Board; 2) the final budget as amended by the Board; 3) the actual resources, charges to appropriations, 
and ending balances in the General Fund; and 4) the difference or variance between the final budget and 
the actual resources and charges.  To account for the difference between the budgetary basis of 
accounting and the modified accrual basis, a reconciliation showing the differences in the reported 
activities is shown at the end of the budgetary statement. 

6



 

 

Notes to the Financial Statements  
 
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in 
the government-wide and fund financial statements.  The notes to the financial statements begin on page 
20 of this report. 
 
Other Information  
 
In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report includes certain required 
supplementary information concerning the Town of Matthews’ progress in funding its obligation to 
provide pension benefits to its employees.  Required supplementary information can be found beginning 
on page 46 of this report.  
 
Interdependence with Other Entities.  The Town depends on financial resources flowing from, or 
associated with, both the federal government and the State of North Carolina.  Because of this 
dependency, the Town is subject to changes in specific flows of intergovernmental revenues based on 
modifications to federal and State laws and federal and State appropriations.  It is also subject to changes 
in investment earnings and asset values associated with U.S. Treasury Securities because of actions by 
foreign governments and other holders of publicly held U.S. Treasury Securities. 
 

Government-Wide Financial Analysis 
 

Town of Matthews’ Net Position 
 

Figure 2 
 

2015 2014

Assets:
Current and other assets 14,862,910$     8,406,319$       
Capital assets, net 251,800,170     253,923,445     

Total assets 266,663,080     262,329,764     

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Contributions to pension plan 529,824            -                        

Liabilities:
Current liabilities 2,260,720         1,973,162         
Non-current liabilities 8,614,874         4,204,172         

Total liabilities 10,875,594       6,177,334         

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Pension deferrals 1,701,575         -                        

Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 249,577,871     251,078,195     
Restricted 2,994,790         2,075,669         
Unrestricted 2,043,074         2,998,566         

Total net position 254,615,735$  256,152,430$  

Governmental Activities

 
 

7



 

 

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as one useful indicator of a government’s financial 
condition.  The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the Town of Matthews exceeded its liabilities 
and deferred inflows of resources by $254,615,735 as of June 30, 2015.  The Town’s net position 
decreased by $1,536,695 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.  However, the largest portion (98%) 
reflects the Town’s investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, machinery, and equipment); less any 
related debt still outstanding that was issued to acquire those items.  The Town of Matthews uses these 
capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future 
spending. 
 
Although the Town of Matthews’ investments in its capital assets is reported net of the outstanding 
related debt, the resources needed to repay that debt must be provided by other sources, since the capital 
assets cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.  A balance of $2,043,074 is unrestricted.   
 
Also, the Town of Matthews implemented GASB Statement 68 this year.  With the new reporting change, 
the Town is allocated its proportionate share of the Local Government Employees’ Retirement System’s 
net pension asset, deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and pension expense.  A 
restatement to record the effects of the new reporting guidance decreased beginning net position by 
$988,490.  Decisions regarding the allocations are made by the administrators of the pension plan, not by 
the Town of Troutman’s management. 
 
Please note the following, which also affects the financial position of the Town: 
 
 Mecklenburg County bills and collects all real property and motor vehicle tax due to the Town of 

Matthews.  The percent of net levy collected for the year ended June 30, 2015 is 99.54.  The North 
Carolina Department of Motor Vehicles started collection of motor vehicle taxes in September 2014 
with a new program called “Tax and Tag”.  The percent of net levy collected for the year ended June 
30, 2015 is 99.99. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

8



 

 

Town of Matthews’ Changes in Net Position 
 

Figure 3 
 

2015 2014

Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for service 1,838,112$       1,607,955$       
Operating grants and contributions 1,463,348         959,362            
Capital grants and contributions 608,407            899,208            
General revenues:
Property taxes 10,950,151       11,104,878       
Other taxes 4,569,476         3,963,690         
Unrestricted intergovernmental 1,764,629         1,676,761         
Investment earnings 1,583                953                   

Total revenues 21,195,706       20,212,807       

Expenses:
General government 5,218,577         5,974,279         
Public safety 8,267,556         7,617,603         
Public works 3,928,735         2,964,931         
Environmental protection 2,596,349         2,753,791         
Cultural and recreation 2,051,727         1,554,561         
Economic and physical development 441,604            407,664            
Interest on long-term debt 227,853            199,494            

Total expenses 22,732,401       21,472,323       

Increase (decrease) in net position (1,536,695)        (1,259,516)        

Net Position:
Beginning of year - July 1 257,140,920     258,400,436     
Restatement (988,490)           -                        

Beginning of year - July 1 as restated 256,152,430     258,400,436     

End of year - June 30 254,615,735$   257,140,920$   

Governmental Activities

 

9



 

 

Governmental Activities 
 
Governmental activities decreased the Town’s net position by $1,536,695 as compared to $1,259,516 in 
the prior year.  Key elements of this decrease and changes from prior year are as follows: 
 
 Net increase in General Fund balance of $1,002,300 and $362,591 in Tourism Fund balance. 
 Net decrease contributed to increase in depreciation expense over capital additions. 
 Increase in Long Term Liabilities due to significant capital projects and associated debt.  
 

Financial Analysis of the Town’s Funds 
 
As noted earlier, the Town of Matthews uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
finance-related legal requirements. 
 
Governmental Funds 
 
The focus of the Town of Matthews’ governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, 
outflows, and balances of usable resources.  Such information is useful in assessing the Town of 
Matthews’ financing requirements.  Specifically, fund balance available for appropriation can be a useful 
measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. 
 
The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the Town of Matthews.  At the end of the current fiscal 
year, the Town of Matthews’ fund balance available in the General Fund was $5,882,292, while total fund 
balance reached $7,865,820.  The Town currently has an available fund balance of 30.87% of General 
Fund expenditures and transfer to other funds, while total fund balance represents 41.28% of the same 
amount.  
 
At June 30, 2015, the governmental funds of the Town of Matthews reported a combined fund balance of 
$13,152,629 with a net increase in fund balance of $5,460,596.  Included in this change in fund balance is 
the debt proceeds of $5,700,000.  Fund balance increased in the Capital Improvement Program Fund by 
$4,004,456 due to the debt issuance.  The Tourism Fund had an increase in fund balance of $362,591 for 
approved arts and culture programs, events, and festivals, as well as other tourism and tourism-related 
programs and activities.   
 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights   
 
During fiscal year 2015, the Town revised the budget on several occasions.  Generally, budget 
amendments fall into one of three categories:  (1) amendments made to adjust the estimates that are used 
to prepare the original budget ordinance once exact information is available; (2) amendments made to 
recognize new funding amounts from external sources, such as Federal and State grants; and (3) increase 
in appropriations that become necessary to maintain services. 
 
At year-end, actual revenues exceeded final amended budget numbers by roughly less than 3%.  Actual 
expenditures were less than final budgetary figures by roughly 8%. 
 

10



 

 

Capital Assets and Debt Administration 
 
Capital Assets.  The Town of Matthews’ investment in capital assets for its governmental activities as of 
June 30, 2015 totals $251,800,170 (net of accumulated depreciation).  These assets include land, 
buildings, machinery, equipment, vehicles, and park facilities.   
 
Major capital transactions during the year are detailed below. 
 
 Land Purchase – $381,940 
 Additions to police and other vehicles – $176,091 
 Public Works equipment purchases – $317,329 

 
Town of Matthews’ Capital Assets 

(net of depreciation) 
 

Figure 4 
 

2015 2014

Land 227,434,285$    227,052,345$    
Construction in progress -                         26,997               
Buildings 28,501,558        28,493,158        
Infrastructure 95,646,784        95,646,784        
Equipment 3,615,038          3,404,912          
Vehicles and motorized equipment 5,597,349          5,522,881          
Accumulated depreciation (108,994,844)     (106,223,632)     

Total capital assets, net 251,800,170$   253,923,445$   

Governmental Activities

 
 
Additional information on the Town’s capital assets can be found in the notes to basic financial 
statements on pages 30-31. 
 
Long-Term Debt.  As of June 30, 2015, the Town of Matthews had total bonded debt outstanding of 
$6,500,000, all completely backed by the full faith and credit of the Town. 

 
Town of Matthews’ Outstanding Debt 

 
General Obligation Bonds and Notes Payable 

 
Figure 5 

 

2015 2014

General obligation bonds 6,500,000$        1,400,000$        
Notes payable 2,222,299          2,845,250          

Total 8,722,299$       4,245,250$       

Governmental Activities

 

11



 

 

The Town of Matthews’ total General Obligation Bond and notes payable debt increased by $4,477,049 
(105%) during the past fiscal year. 
 
North Carolina General Statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt that a unit of government can 
issue to 8% of the total assessed value of taxable property located within that government’s boundaries.  
The legal debt margin for the Town of Matthews is approximately $273,500,945. 
 
Additional information regarding the Town of Matthews’ long-term debt can be found in the notes to the 
basic financial statements beginning on page 42. 
 
Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates 
 
The following key economic indicators reflect the economic condition of the Town. 
 
 The effects of the economic impact from the past five years continue to be a major factor and 

budgetary concern for the Town.  We have gradually accepted and adjusted to the new normal for the 
Town, area, and region as slow recovery lingers. 

 Taxable building permits issued continue pointing to a strengthening economy.  During Fiscal Year 
2014-2015, building permits totaling $38,424,823 were issued.  This reflects a 74.56% growth over 
the previous year. 

 Sales and use taxes have slowly increased for three consecutive years.  Fiscal Year 2014-2015 
showed a growth of approximately 14.4% from the prior year.   

 Mecklenburg County performed a property tax revaluation in 2011.  Due to the economy status, much 
controversy ensued regarding the new valuations.  This resulted in a higher rate of appeals and 
refunds for Mecklenburg County and the municipalities located within.  The North Carolina General 
Assembly passed SB159, which required the county to conduct an independent review using an 
outside firm.  Due to lower property tax valuations, the Town’s Board of Commissioners increased 
the tax rate for Fiscal Year 2013-2014 to help with the deficient so that services would remain status 
quo.  The full extent of the independent review for the Town has resulted in an approximately 
$975,000 estimate in taxes due to be refunded. Of the total, nearly $600,000 in refunds were issued in 
Fiscal Year 2014-2015. 

 The Town has authorized, and issued, bonds totaling $5.5 million for roadway improvements within 
the Town that were voter approved in November 2004.  In May 2011, the Board of Commissioners 
voted to seek an extension in the sale of these bonds.  A three-year extension was granted by the 
North Carolina Local Government Commission.  In July 2013, the Board of Commissioners voted to 
approve the Town moving forward on the process necessary to sell the road bonds. The road bonds 
were sold in October 2014. The construction project widening South Trade Street is in progress with 
an estimated completion of Winter/Spring 2016. 

 A joint interlocal effort between Mecklenburg County Parks and Recreation and the Town of 
Matthews to develop a regional sportsplex within the Town limits has resulted in bringing additional 
recreational activities and regional tournaments to our area, along with additional tourism dollars.  
This 160-acre site is located next to the family entertainment district.  The sports facility was 
dedicated in spring 2014.  The Town is becoming a destination attraction with dining, shopping, 
entertainment, and recreational opportunities.  Construction began on Phase II early 2015. 
 

 

12



 

 

Budget Highlights for the Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2016 
 
Governmental Activities 
 
General Fund. The Town of Matthews approved a $20,646,716 General Fund budget for the fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2015.  This represents a 4.81% increase from the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014.  The 
property tax rate increased to 0.3400 cent per $100; the auto tag fees remained $25 per registered motor 
vehicle. There was minimal fund balance appropriation used.   
 
The adopted Fiscal Year 2015 budget expenditures in the General Fund are used to provide continuation 
of current service levels, the expectation of moderate cost of fuel along with increased utility rates.  It also 
includes a 3.0% pool of funds for salary increases based on performance for employees.  Unassigned fund 
balance dollars provide additional security as the economy continues to rebuild.  They are also available 
for unexpected expenditures and/or opportunities. 
 
Tourism Fund. The Town of Matthews approved a $1,424,800 Tourism Fund budget for the fiscal year 
ending June 30, 2015.  There was no fund balance appropriation used.  The Tourism Fund is used to 
support, maintain, operate, market, and promote the performing arts centers, auditoriums, and museums.  
Tourism and tourism-related programs and activities help set the Town apart in the region. 
 

Requests for Information 
 
This report is designed to provide an overview of the Town of Matthews’ finances for those with an 
interest in this area.  Questions concerning any of the information found in this report or requests for 
additional information should be directed to the Director of Finance, Town of Matthews, 232 Matthews 
Station Street, Matthews, North Carolina 28105. 
 
 

13



Exhibit A

TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2015

Governmental
Activities

Assets:
Current assets:
Cash and investments 7,563,270$          
Restricted cash and investments 4,847,069            
Taxes receivable, net 349,632               
Accounts receivable, net 174,349               
Due from other governments 1,148,295            
Notes receivable 91,249                 
Prepaid items 8,125                   

Total current assets 14,181,989          

Non-current assets:
Net pension asset 680,921              

Capital assets :
Non-depreciable 227,434,285        
Depreciable, net 24,365,885          

Total capital assets 251,800,170        

Total assets 266,663,080        

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Contributions to pension plan in current fiscal year 529,824               

Liabilities:  
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 721,788               
Current portion of compensated absences 42,663                 
Current portion of long-term liabilities 1,496,269            

Total current liabilities 2,260,720            

Non-current liabilities:
Non-current portion of compensated absences 383,964               
Non-current portion of long-term liabilities 8,230,910            

Total non-current liabilities 8,614,874            

Total liabilities 10,875,594          

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Pension deferrals 1,701,575            

Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 249,577,871        
Restricted for:
Stabilization by State statute 1,958,222            
Culture and recreation 634,810               
Capital outlay 401,758               

Unrestricted 2,043,074            

Total net position 254,615,735$      

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

14



Exhibit B

TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Net Revenue
(Expense) and

Changes in
 Net Position

Primary 
Government

 Operating   Capital
 Charges  Grants and  Grants and Governmental

Functions/Programs: Expenses for Services Contributions Contributions Activities

Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:
General government 5,218,577$        117,670$            -$                        450,063$            (4,650,844)$         
Public safety 8,267,556          342,818              426,319              158,344              (7,340,075)           
Public works 3,928,735          591,114              1,015,454           -                          (2,322,167)           
Environmental protection 2,596,349          -                          -                          -                          (2,596,349)           
Economic and physical development 441,604             20,598                -                          -                          (421,006)              
Culture and recreation 2,051,727          765,912              21,575                -                          (1,264,240)           
Interest on long-term debt 227,853             -                          -                          -                          (227,853)              

Total primary government 22,732,401$      1,838,112$         1,463,348$         608,407$            (18,822,534)         

General Revenues:
Taxes:
Ad valorem taxes 10,950,151           
Local options sales tax 2,689,154             
Utility franchise and excise tax 1,880,322             
Occupancy tax 504,123                
Prepared food tax 826,173                
Rental car tax 126,052                
Privilege licenses 172,738                
Other taxes and licenses 135,543                
Investment earnings 1,583                    

Total general revenues 17,285,839           

Change in net position (1,536,695)           

Net Position:
Beginning of year - July 1 257,140,920         
Restatement (988,490)              

Beginning of year - July 1 as restated 256,152,430         

End of year - June 30 254,615,735$      

Program Revenues

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

15



Exhibit  C

TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2015

Capital Nonmajor Total
General Improvement Governmental Governmental

Fund Program Funds Funds

Assets:
Cash and investments 6,469,589$          446,598$           647,083$               7,563,270$           
Restricted cash and investments 670,896               4,176,173          -                             4,847,069             
Taxes receivable, net 349,632               -                          -                             349,632                
Notes receivable 91,249                  -                          -                             91,249                  
Accounts receivable 162,080               12,269               -                             174,349                
Due from other governments 1,086,496            -                          61,799                   1,148,295             
Prepaid items 8,125                    -                          -                             8,125                    

Total assets 8,838,067$         4,635,040$       708,882$               14,181,989$        

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources,
  and Fund Balances:
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 556,732$             44,840$             12,273$                 613,845$              

Total liabilities 556,732               44,840               12,273                   613,845                

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Unavailable taxes 349,632               -                          -                             349,632                

Unavailable revenue 65,883                  -                          -                             65,883                  

Total deferred inflows of resources 415,515               -                          -                             415,515                

Fund Balances:
Non-spendable:
Long term note receivable 91,249                  -                          -                             91,249                  
Prepaids 8,125                    -                          -                             8,125                    
Restricted:
Stabilization by State statute 1,884,154            12,269               61,799                   1,958,222             
Culture and recreation -                            -                          634,810                 634,810                
Capital outlay -                            4,577,931          -                             4,577,931             
Assigned for environmental protection - stormwater 171,147               -                          -                             171,147                
Unassigned 5,711,145            -                          -                             5,711,145             

Total fund balances 7,865,820            4,590,200          696,609                 13,152,629           

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and fund balances 8,838,067$          4,635,040$        708,882$               

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the 
Statement of Net Position (Exhibit A) are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 251,800,170         

Net pension asset 680,921                

Contributions to the pension plan in the current fiscal year are deferred
outflows of resources on the Statement of Net Position. 529,824                

Pension related deferrals (1,701,575)           

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period
expenditures and, therefore, are deferred inflows of resources in the funds. 415,515                

Some liabilities, including bonds payable, accrued interest, and
compensated absences, are not due and payable in the current 
period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. (10,261,749)         

Net position of governmental activities 254,615,735$     

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

16



Exhibit D

TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Capital Nonmajor Total
General Improvement Governmental Governmental

Fund Program Funds Funds

Revenues:
Ad valorem taxes 11,024,527$        -$                        -$                         11,024,527$        
Other taxes and licenses 4,859,030            -                          1,456,956             6,315,986            
Unrestricted intergovernmental 218,473               -                          -                           218,473               
Restricted intergovernmental 1,635,821            233,663               -                           1,869,484            
Permits and fees 15,000                 -                          -                           15,000                 
Sales and services 1,564,049            -                          -                           1,564,049            
Investment earnings 1,583                   -                          -                           1,583                   
Miscellaneous 242,173               688                     -                           242,861               

Total revenues 19,560,656          234,351               1,456,956             21,251,963          

Expenditures:
Current:
General government 3,504,431            -                          -                           3,504,431            
Public safety 7,414,685            36,801                 -                           7,451,486            
Public works 2,253,628            2,041,989            -                           4,295,617            
Environmental protection 2,457,262            139,087               -                           2,596,349            
Economic and physical development 439,866               -                          -                           439,866               
Cultural and recreational 1,309,387            48,420                 606,365                1,964,172            
Debt service:
Principal retirement 1,222,951            -                          -                           1,222,951            
Interest and other charges 136,895               -                          -                           136,895               

Total expenditures 18,739,105          2,266,297            606,365                21,611,767          

Revenues over (under) expenditures 821,551               (2,031,946)          850,591                (359,804)              

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Long-term debt issued -                          5,700,000            -                           5,700,000            
Transfers (to) other funds (316,270)             (292,000)             (780,000)               (1,388,270)           
Transfers from other funds 575,000               521,270               292,000                1,388,270            

Premium issued -                          107,132               -                           107,132               

Proceeds from sale of capital assets 13,268                 -                          -                           13,268                 

Total other financing sources (uses) 271,998               6,036,402            (488,000)               5,820,400            

Net change in fund balances 1,093,549            4,004,456            362,591                5,460,596            

Fund Balances:
Beginning of year - July 1 6,772,271            585,744               334,018                7,692,033            

End of year - June 30 7,865,820$         4,590,200$         696,609$              13,152,629$       

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

17



Exhibit E

TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities (Exhibit B)
are different due to the following items:

Net change in fund balances - governmental funds (Exhibit D) 5,460,596$        

Governmental funds statements report capital outlays as expenditures.  However, in 
the Statement of Activities, capital outlay is not an expense, rather it is an increase 
to capital assets. 883,760             

Depreciation is recognized as an expense in the Statement of Activities; however, 
it is not reported in the governmental funds. (2,980,038)         

In the Statement of Activities, only the loss on the sale of capital assets is reported. However,
in the governmental funds statement, the proceeds from the sale increase financial resources. 
Thus, the change in net assets differs from the change in fund balance by the net book value
of capital assets sold. (26,997)              

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial resources 
are not reported as revenues in the governmental funds statement.  This adjustment
represents the amount of change related to revenues subject to the "availability" criteria. (597,569)            

Pension expense (32,164)              

Contributions to the pension plan in the current fiscal year are not included on the
Statement of Activities. 529,824             

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to the governmental
funds statement, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the 
current financial resources of governmental funds.  Neither transaction has any effect 
on net position. (4,584,181)         

Accrued interest that does not require current financial resources and is not
reported as an expenditure in the governmental funds statement (90,958)              

Expenses related to the increase in vacation and sick pay and the increase in the net 
OPEB and pension obligations in the Statement of Activities that do not pay for current 
financial obligations are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds statement. 
This adjustment is the amount of net change in these balances in the current year. (98,968)              

Change in net position of governmental activities per Exhibit B (1,536,695)$       

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

18



Exhibit F

TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND 
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Variance with
Actual Final Budget

Original Final Amounts Over/Under

Revenues:
Ad valorem taxes 11,201,000$        11,201,000$        11,024,527$      (176,473)$              
Other taxes and licenses 4,334,503            4,334,503            4,859,030          524,527                 
Unrestricted intergovernmental 188,300               188,300               218,473             30,173                   
Restricted intergovernmental 1,539,554            1,760,921            1,635,821          (125,100)                
Permits and fees 15,000                 15,000                 15,000               -                             
Sales and services 1,369,850            1,413,722            1,564,049          150,327                 
Investment earnings 1,000                   1,000                   1,400                 400                         
Miscellaneous 72,661                 123,913               242,173             118,260                 

Total revenues 18,721,868          19,038,359          19,560,473        522,114                 

Expenditures:
Current:
General government 3,506,313            3,507,370            3,504,431          2,939                     
Public safety 7,330,320            7,651,676            7,414,685          236,991                 
Public works 3,047,344            3,506,838            2,253,628          1,253,210              
Environmental protection 2,536,958            2,471,738            2,457,262          14,476                   
Economic and physical development 471,531               491,531               439,866             51,665                   
Cultural and recreation 1,137,850            1,331,524            1,309,387          22,137                   
Contingency 30,000                 11,335                 -                         11,335                   
Debt service:
Principal retirement 1,235,383            1,235,383            1,222,951          12,432                   
Interest and other charges 137,000               137,000               136,895             105                         

Total expenditures 19,432,699          20,344,395          18,739,105        1,605,290              

Revenues over (under) expenditures (710,831)              (1,306,036)           821,368             2,127,404              

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Sale of capital assets 10,000                 10,000                 13,268               3,268                     
Transfers to other funds (265,670)              (265,670)              (265,670)            -                             
Transfers from other funds 966,501               1,561,706            575,000             (986,706)                

Total other financing sources (uses) 710,831               1,306,036            322,598             (983,438)                

Net change in fund balance -$                        -$                        1,143,966          1,143,966$           

Fund Balance:
Beginning of year - July 1 6,719,067          

End of year - June 30 7,863,033$        

Budgeted Amounts

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

19



TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA 
  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

 
 

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 

The accounting policies of the Town of Matthews conform to generally accepted accounting 
principles as applicable to governments.  The following is a summary of the more significant 
accounting policies: 

 
A. Reporting Entity 

 
The Town of Matthews, North Carolina (the “Town”), is a municipal corporation that is 
governed by an elected Mayor and a six-member Town Council.  As required by generally 
accepted accounting principles, these financial statements present the Town, which has no 
component units. 

 
B. Basis of Presentation 

 
Government-Wide Statements.  The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of 
Activities display information about the primary government.  These statements include the 
financial activities of the overall government.  Eliminations have been made to minimize the 
double counting of internal activities except for services provided and used which were not 
eliminated in the process of consolidation.  Governmental activities generally are financed 
through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange transactions.   
 
The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program 
revenues for each function of the Town’s governmental activities.  Direct expenses are those 
that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore, are clearly 
identifiable to a particular function.  Indirect expense allocations that have been made in the 
funds have been reversed for the Statement of Activities.  Program revenues include (a) fees 
and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services offered by the programs and (b) grants 
and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a 
particular program.  Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, 
are presented as general revenues. 
 
Fund Financial Statements.  The fund financial statements provide information about the 
Town’s funds.  The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental funds.  All 
remaining governmental funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds. 
 
The Town reports the following major governmental funds: 
 
General Fund.  The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Town.  The General 
Fund accounts for all financial resources except those that are required to be accounted for in 
another fund.  The primary revenue sources are ad valorem taxes, State grants, and various 
other taxes and licenses.  The primary expenditures are for public safety, public works, and 
general governmental services. Additionally, the Town has legally adopted a Capital Reserve 
Fund.  Under GASB 54 guidance, the Capital Reserve Fund is consolidated in the General 
Fund.  The budgetary comparison for the Capital Reserve Fund has been included in the 
supplemental information. 
 
 

20



TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA 
  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

 
 

Capital Improvement Program Capital Project Fund.  This fund is used to account for 
money set aside by the Town to build and construct various projects within the Town.  
 
The Town reports the following nonmajor governmental fund: 
 
Tourism Special Revenue Fund.  This fund is used to account for the occupancy and prepared 
food taxes received and expended exclusively for the purpose of promoting the Town’s 
activities and events. 
 

C. Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting 
 
In accordance with North Carolina General Statutes, all funds of the Town are maintained 
during the year using the modified accrual basis of accounting. 
 
Government-Wide Financial Statements.  The government-wide financial statements are 
reported using the economic resources measurement focus.  The government-wide financial 
statements are reported using the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recorded when 
earned, and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the 
related cash flows take place.  Non-exchange transactions, in which the Town gives (or 
receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include property 
taxes, grants, and donations.  On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in 
the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied.  Revenues from grants and donations are 
recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied. 
 
Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, 
services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and 
contributions.  Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as 
program revenues.  Likewise, general revenues include all taxes. 
 
Governmental Fund Financial Statements.  Governmental funds are reported using the current 
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Under 
this method, revenues are recognized when measurable and available.  Expenditures are 
recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for principal and interest on general 
long-term debt, claims and judgments, and compensated absences, which are recognized as 
expenditures to the extent they have matured.  General capital asset acquisitions are reported as 
expenditures in governmental funds.  Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under 
capital leases are reported as other financing sources. 
 
The Town considers all revenues available if they are collected within 90 days after year-end, 
except for property taxes.  Ad valorem taxes are not accrued as revenue because the amount is 
not susceptible to accrual.  At June 30, taxes receivable for property other than motor vehicles 
are materially past due and are not considered to be an available resource to finance the 
operations of the current year.  Also, as of September 1, 2013, State law altered the procedures 
for the assessment and collection of property taxes on registered motor vehicles in North 
Carolina.  Effective with this change in the law, the State of North Carolina is responsible for 
billing and collecting the property taxes on registered motor vehicles on behalf of all 
municipalities and special tax districts.  Property taxes are due when vehicles are registered.   

21



TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA 
  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

 
 

The billed taxes are applicable to the fiscal year in which they are received.  Uncollected taxes 
that were billed in periods prior to September 1, 2013 and for limited registration plates are 
shown as a receivable in these financial statements and are offset by deferred inflows of 
resources. 
 
Sales taxes and certain intergovernmental revenues, such as the utilities franchise tax, collected 
and held by the State at year-end on behalf of the Town, are recognized as revenue.  Sales taxes 
are considered a shared revenue for the Town because the tax is levied by Mecklenburg County 
and then remitted to and distributed by the State.  Most intergovernmental revenues and sales 
and services are not susceptible to accrual because generally they are not measurable until 
received in cash.  All taxes, including those dedicated for specific purposes are reported as 
general revenues rather than program revenues.  Under the terms of grant agreements, the Town 
funds certain programs by a combination of specific cost-reimbursement grants, categorical 
block grants, and general revenues.  Thus, when program expenses are incurred, there are both 
restricted and unrestricted net position available to finance the program.  It is the Town’s policy 
to first apply cost-reimbursement grant resources to such programs, followed by categorical 
block grants, and then by general revenues.   
 

D. Budgetary Data 
 

The Town’s budgets are adopted as required by the North Carolina General Statutes.  An 
annual budget is adopted for the General Fund, Stormwater Project Capital Reserve and the 
Tourism Special Revenue Fund.  All annual appropriations lapse at the fiscal year-end.  Project 
ordinances are adopted for the Capital Improvement Program Capital Projects Fund.  All 
budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Expenditures may not 
legally exceed appropriations at the functional level for all annually budgeted funds and at the 
object level for the multi-year funds.  The Town’s Manager may make transfers of 
appropriations between departments not to exceed ten percent of the appropriated monies for 
the department whose allocation is reduced without seeking approval from the Town Council.  
During the year, several amendments to the original budgets were necessary.  The budget 
ordinance must be adopted by July 1 of the fiscal year or the governing board must adopt an 
interim budget that covers that time until the annual ordinance can be adopted.   
 

E. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources, and Fund Equity  
 

Deposits and Investments 
 
All deposits of the Town are made in Board-designated official depositories and are secured as 
required by State law [G.S. 159-31].  The Town may designate, as an official depository, any 
bank or savings association whose principal office is located in North Carolina.  Also, the 
Town may establish time deposit accounts such as NOW and SuperNOW accounts, money 
market accounts, and certificates of deposit. 
 
State law [G.S. 159-30 (c)] authorizes the Town to invest in obligations of the United States or 
obligations fully guaranteed both as to principal and interest by the United States; obligations of 
the State of North Carolina; bonds and notes of any North Carolina local government or public 
authority; obligations of certain non-guaranteed federal agencies; certain high quality issues of 

22



TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA 
  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

 
 

commercial paper and bankers’ acceptances; and the North Carolina Capital Management Trust 
(“NCCMT”).  The Town’s investments are reported at fair value as determined by quoted 
market prices.  The securities of the NCCMT Cash Portfolio, an SEC-registered (2a-7) money 
market mutual fund, are valued at fair value, which is the NCCMT’s share price.  The NCCMT 
Term Portfolio’s securities are valued at fair value.  Money market investments that have a 
remaining maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less are reported at amortized cost.  
Non-participating interest earnings and investment contracts are reported at cost. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
The Town pools money from several funds to facilitate disbursement and investment and to 
maximize investment income.  Therefore, all cash and investments are essentially demand 
deposits and are considered cash and cash equivalents. 
 
Restricted Assets 
 
Unexpended debt proceeds are presented as restricted cash as their use is completely restricted 
to the purposes for which the funds were received or designated for by an outside third party.  
In accordance with State law [G.S. 136-41.1 through 136-41.4], Powell Bill funds are classified 
as restricted cash because it can be expended only for the purpose of maintaining, repairing, 
constructing, reconstructing, or widening of local streets. 
 
Governmental Activities:
General Fund
Streets 670,896$         

Capital Improvement Program Capital Project Fund

Culture and recreation - unexpended bond proceeds 4,176,173        

Total governmental activities 4,847,069$      

 
Ad Valorem Taxes Receivable 
 
In accordance with State law [G.S. 105-347 and G.S. 159-13(a)], the Town levies ad valorem 
taxes on property other than motor vehicles on July 1, the beginning of the fiscal year.  The 
taxes are due on September 1 (lien date); however, penalties and interest do not accrue until the 
following January 6.  The taxes levied are based on the assessed values as of January 1, 2014. 
 
Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts 
 
Allowances for doubtful accounts are maintained on all types of receivables which historically 
experience uncollectible accounts. This amount is estimated by analyzing the percentage of 
receivables that were written off in prior years.  
 

23



TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA 
  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

 
 

Prepaid Items 
 
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are 
recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. 
 
Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more 
than a certain cost and an estimated useful life in excess of two years.  Minimum capitalization 
costs are as follows:  land, $10,000; buildings, improvements, substations, lines, and other plant 
and distribution systems, $15,000; infrastructure, $20,000; furniture and equipment, $5,000; 
and vehicles, $10,000.  Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated 
historical cost.  Donated capital assets are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of 
donation.  General infrastructure assets acquired prior to July 1, 2003, consist of the road 
network and stormwater system assets that were acquired or that received substantial 
improvements subsequent to July 1, 1980, and are reported at estimated historical cost using 
deflated replacement cost.  The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the 
value of the asset or materially extend assets’ lives is not capitalized. 
 
Capital assets are depreciated on a straight-line method over the following estimated useful 
lives: 
 

Estimated
Asset Useful  Lives

Infrastructure 15-25 years
Buildings 40 years
Improvements 25 years
Vehicles 5 years
Furniture and equipment 5-10 years
Computer equipment 5 years

 
Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
 
In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element, Deferred Outflows 
of Resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period and so 
will not be recognized as an expense or expenditure until then.  The Town has only one item 
that meets the criterion, contributions made to the pension plan in the 2015 fiscal year.  In 
addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred inflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element, Deferred Inflows of 
Resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period and so will 
not be recognized as revenue until then.  The Town has only one item that meets the criterion 
for this category, deferrals of pension expense that result from the implementation of GASB 
Statement No. 68. 
 

24



TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA 
  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

 
 

Long-Term Obligations 
 
In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations 
are reported as liabilities in the applicable activities fund type in the Statement of Net Position.  
Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the 
straight-line method that approximates the effective interest method.  Bonds payable are 
reported net of the applicable bond premiums of discount.  Bond issuance costs, except for 
prepaid insurance costs, are expensed in the reporting period in which they are incurred. 
Prepaid insurance costs are expensed over the term of the related debt.   
 
In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and 
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period.  The face amount of debt 
issued is reported as other financing sources.  Premiums received on debt issuances are reported 
as other financing sources, while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing 
uses.  Issuance costs, whether or not withheld for the actual debt proceeds received, are 
reported as debt service expenditures. 
 
Compensated Absences 
 
The vacation policy of the Town provides for the accumulation of up to thirty days earned 
vacation leave, with such leave being fully vested when earned.  For the Town’s government-
wide financial statements, an expense and a liability for compensated absences and the salary-
related payments are recorded as the leave is earned.  The Town has assumed a first-in, first-out 
method of using accumulated compensated time.  The portion of the time that is estimated to be 
used in the next fiscal year has been designated as a current liability in the government-wide 
financial statements. 
 
The Town’s sick leave policy provides for an unlimited accumulation of earned sick leave.  
Sick leave does not vest, but any unused sick leave accumulated at the time of retirement may 
be used in the determination of length of service for retirement benefit purposes.  Since the 
Town has no obligation for the accumulated sick leave until it is actually taken, no accrual for 
sick leave has been made. 
 
In lieu of such payment, the employee is entitled to additional time off for such holiday hours 
worked.  In lieu of payment for overtime hours worked, an employee may take additional hours 
off. For the Town’s government-wide financial statements, an expense and a liability for 
compensated absences and the salary-related payments are recorded as the leave is earned.  The 
Town has assumed a first-in, first-out method of using accumulated compensated time.  The 
portion of time that is estimated to be used in the next fiscal year has been designated as a 
current liability in the government-wide financial statements. 
 
Net Position/Fund Balances 
 
Net position in government-wide financial statements is classified as net investment in capital 
assets; restricted and unrestricted.  Restricted net position represents constraints on resources 
that are either externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, laws or regulations of 
other governments, or imposed by law through State statute. 
 

25



TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA 
  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

 
 

In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balance is composed of five classifications 
designed to disclose the hierarchy of constraints placed on how fund balance can be spent. 
 
The governmental fund types classify fund balances as follows: 
 
Non-Spendable Fund Balance  
 
This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not in 
spendable form or (b) legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 
  
Prepaids – portion of fund balance that is not an available resource because it represents the 
year-end balance of prepaid expenses, which are not expendable, available resources. 
 
Long-Term Note Receivable – portion of fund balance that is not an available resource because 
it represents the amount not expected to be converted to cash during the subsequent fiscal year. 
 
Restricted Fund Balance 
 
This classification includes amounts that are restricted to specific purposes externally imposed 
by creditors or imposed by law. 
 
Stabilization by State Statute – portion of fund balance that is not an available resource for 
appropriation in accordance with State law [G.S. 159-8(a)]. 
 
Culture and Recreation – portion of fund balance that is restricted for use only on tourism 
related activities to promote culture and recreation. 
 
Capital Outlay – portion of fund balance that is restricted for use only for approved capital 
outlay projects in the Capital Improvements Fund. 
 
Restricted fund balance/net position on Exhibit A varies from Exhibit C by the amount of 
unexpended bond proceeds of $4,176,173 at June 30, 2015. 
 
Restricted fund balance does not include restricted cash for streets as all restricted amount is 
encumbered at year-end which is included in the calculation of stabilization by State statute. 
The amount of $670,896 is included in stabilization of state statute at year end. 
 
Committed Fund Balance 
 
This classification represents the portion of fund balance that can only be used for specific 
purposes determined by a formal action of the government’s highest level of decision-making 
authority.  The governing council is the highest level of decision-making authority for the 
government that can, by adoption of an ordinance prior to the end of the fiscal year, commit 
fund balance.  Once adopted, the limitation imposed by the ordinance remains in place until a 
similar action is taken (the adoption of another ordinance) to remove or revise the limitation. 
 

26



TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA 
  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

 
 

Assigned Fund Balance 
 
Assigned fund balance is the portion of fund balance that the Town intends to use for specific 
purposes.  The Town's governing body has the authority to assign fund balance.   
 
The Manager and Finance Officer, as granted in the officially adopted budget ordinance, have 
been granted limited authority to assign fund balance. 
 
Assigned for Environmental Protection – portion of fund balance budgeted by the Board for use 
for environmental incentives and projects. 
 
Unassigned Fund Balance 
 
Unassigned fund balance represents the portion of fund balance that has not been assigned to 
another fund or is not restricted, committed, or assigned to specific purposes within the General 
Fund. 
 
The Town has a revenue spending policy that provides guidance for programs with multiple 
revenue sources.  The Finance Officer will use resources in the following order:  bond/debt 
proceeds, federal funds, State funds, local non-Town funds, and Town funds.   
 
For purposes of fund balance classification, expenditures are to be spent from restricted fund 
balance first, followed in order by committed fund balance, assigned fund balance and, lastly, 
unassigned fund balance.  The Finance Officer has the authority to deviate from this policy if it 
is in the best interest of the Town or when required by grant or other contractual agreements. 
 
The Town has not officially adopted a fund balance policy.  
 
The following schedule provides management and citizens with information on the portion of 
General Fund balance that is available for appropriation. 
 

Total fund balance - General Fund 7,865,820$        
Less:
Long term note receivable 91,249               
Prepaids 8,125                 
Stabilization by State statute 1,884,154          

Total available fund balance 5,882,292$       
 

 

27



TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA 
  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

 
 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 
– Budget and Actual – General Fund to the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and 
Changes in Fund Balance Governmental Funds 
 
A legally budgeted Capital Reserve Fund is consolidated into the General Fund for reporting 
purposes on the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 
Governmental Funds (Exhibit 4).  Fund balance for the General Fund is reconciled as follows: 
 

Fund balance, ending (Exhibit F) 7,863,033$        
Capital Reserve Fund
  investment earnings 183                    
Transfers out (50,600)              

Fund balance, beginning 53,204               

Fund balance, ending (Exhibit D) 7,865,820$       

 
The outstanding encumbrances represent amounts needed to pay any commitments related to 
purchase orders and contracts that remain unperformed at year-end.  Encumbrances in the 
General Fund at June 30, 2015 were $701,461. 
 

F. Accounting Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities and disclosures of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts 
of revenues and expenses during the period.  Actual results could differ from these estimates. 

 
2. Detail Notes On All Funds 

 
A. Assets 

 
Deposits 
 
All of the Town’s deposits are either insured or collateralized by using one of two methods.  
Under the Dedicated Method, all deposits that exceed the federal depository insurance coverage 
level are collateralized with securities held by the Town’s agent in their name.  Under the 
Pooling Method, which is a collateral pool, all uninsured deposits are collateralized with 
securities held by the State Treasurer’s agent in the name of the State Treasurer.  Since the State 
Treasurer is acting in a fiduciary capacity for the Town, these deposits are considered to be held 
by the Town’s agent in their name.  The amount of the pledged collateral is based on an 
approved averaging method for non-interest bearing deposits and the actual current balance for 
interest bearing deposits.  Depositories using the Pooling Method report to the State Treasurer 
the adequacy of their pooled collateral covering uninsured deposits.  The State Treasurer does 
not confirm this information with the Town or with the escrow agent.  Because of the inability 
to measure the exact amount of collateral pledged for the Town under the Pooling Method, the 
potential exists for undercollateralization, and this risk may increase in periods of high cash 

28



TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA 
  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

 
 

flows.  However, the State Treasurer of North Carolina enforces strict standards of financial 
stability for each depository that collateralizes public deposits under the Pooling Method.  The 
Town has no formal policy regarding custodial credit risk for deposits, but relies on the State 
Treasurer to enforce standards of minimum capitalization for all pooling method financial 
institutions and to monitor them for compliance.   
 
The Town complies with the provisions of G.S. 159-31 when designating official depositories 
and verifying that deposits are properly secured. 
 
At June 30, 2015, the Town’s deposits had a carrying amount of $948,510 and a bank balance 
of $1,162,577.  Of the bank balance, $669,095 was covered by federal depository insurance, 
and $493,482 was covered by collateral held under the Pooling Method.   
 
Investments 
 
At June 30, 2015, the Town had $11,461,829 invested with the North Carolina Capital 
Management Trust’s Cash Portfolio, which carried a credit rating of AAAm by Standard and 
Poor’s.   
 
As a means of limiting the Town’s exposure to fair value losses arising from interest rate 
fluctuations, the Town’s investment policy allows the maximum amount to be invested in an 
instrument as follows:  US Treasury obligations, US Government agencies, and certificates of 
deposit, 100% of total portfolio; North Carolina Management Trust, 90% of total portfolio; 
bankers acceptances/commercial paper, 40% of total portfolio; and repurchase agreements, 
25% of total portfolio.  In addition, the Town limits the maximum amount of each instrument 
that can be invested in a given financial institution to the following:  banker’s 
acceptances/commercial paper, 25%; repurchase agreements, 15%; certificates of deposits, 
75%; and North Carolina Management Trust, 90%.   
 
Receivables – Allowances for Doubtful Accounts 
 
The receivables shown in Exhibit A at June 30, 2015 were as follows: 
 

Due from
Other Accounts Notes

Taxes Governments Receivable Receivable Total

Governmental Activities:
Governmental 449,632$     1,148,295$      174,349$     91,249$       1,863,525$  
Allowance for doubtful accounts (100,000)      -                      -                   -                   (100,000)      

Total governmental activities 349,632$     1,148,295$      174,349$     91,249$       1,763,525$  

 

29



TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA 
  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

 
 

Due from other governments consisted of the following: 
 

Local option sales tax 448,378$           
Other taxes and licenses 267,402             
Franchise tax 351,132             
Sales tax refund receivable 81,383               

Total 1,148,295$        

 
The Town has entered into an agreement with Charlotte-Mecklenburg Utility Department 
(CMUD), whereby CMUD pays the Town the principal and interest due on the bonds issued by 
the Town to finance the construction of water and sewer projects.  Title to the assets has been 
transferred to CMUD who operates the facilities.  The note receivable balance as of June 30, 
2015 was $91,249. 
 
Capital Assets 
 
Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2015, was as follows: 
 

July 1, 2014 Increases Decreases June 30, 2015

Governmental Activities:
Non-Depreciable Capital Assets:
Land 227,052,345$   381,940$      -$                 227,434,285$     
Construction in progress 26,997              -                    (26,997)        -                          

Total non-depreciable capital assets 227,079,342     381,940        (26,997)        227,434,285       

Depreciable Capital Assets:
Buildings and improvements 28,493,158       8,400            -                   28,501,558         
Equipment 3,404,912         317,329        (107,203)      3,615,038           
Vehicles and motorized equipment 5,522,881         176,091        (101,623)      5,597,349           
Infrastructure 95,646,784       -                    -                   95,646,784         

Total depreciable capital assets 133,067,735     501,820        (208,826)      133,360,729       

Less Accumulated Depreciation:
Buildings and improvements 8,105,861         722,838        -                   8,828,699           
Equipment 2,378,964         232,895        (107,203)      2,504,656           
Vehicles and motorized equipment 4,805,475         364,160        (101,623)      5,068,012           
Infrastructure 90,933,332       1,660,145     -                   92,593,477         

Total accumulated depreciation 106,223,632     2,980,038$   (208,826)$    108,994,844       

Total depreciable capital assets, net 26,844,103       24,365,885         

Capital assets, net 253,923,445$   251,800,170$     

 

30



TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA 
  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

 
 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as 
follows: 
 

Governmental Activities:
General government 1,656,765$        
Public safety 882,851             
Public works 342,729             
Economic and physical development 1,738                 
Culture and recreation 95,955               

Total 2,980,038$       

 
Net Investment in Capital Assets 
 
The total net investment in capital assets at June 30, 2015 is composed of the following 
elements: 
 

Governmental
Activities

Capital assets 251,800,170$        
Long-term debt (8,829,431)             
Debt for assets not capitalized by the Town 6,607,132              

Net investment in capital assets 249,577,871$       
 

 

Unexpended debt proceeds listed as restricted cash are for assets not capitalized by the Town of 
Matthews, therefore, that amount is omitted in the calculation of net investment in capital 
assets. 
 

B. Liabilities 
 

Pension Plan Obligations 
 
Local Government Employees’ Retirement System 
 
Plan Description.  The Town is a participating employer in the State-wide Local 
Governmental Employees’ Retirement System (LGERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer 
defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of North Carolina.  LGERS membership 
is comprised of general employees and local law enforcement officers (LEOs) of participating 
local government entities.  Article 3 of G.S. Chapter 128 assigns the authority to establish and 
amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly.  Management of the plan is 
vested in the LGERS Board of Trustees, which consists of 13 members – nine appointed by the 
Governor, one appointed by the state Senate, one appointed by the state House of 
Representatives, and the State Treasurer and State Superintendent, who serve as ex-officio 
members.  The Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System is included in the 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the State of North Carolina.  The State’s 
CAFR includes financial statements and required supplementary information for LGERS.  That  

31



TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA 
  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

 
 

report may be obtained by writing to the Office of the State Controller, 1410 Mail Service 
Center, Raleigh, North Carolina 27699-1410, or by calling (919) 981-5454 or at 
www.osc.nc.gov. 
 
Benefits Provided.  LGERS provides retirement and survivor benefits.  Retirement benefits are 
determined as 1.85% of the member’s average final compensation times the member’s years of 
creditable service.  A member’s average final compensation is calculated as the average of a 
member’s four highest consecutive years of compensation.  Plan members are eligible to retire 
with full retirement benefits at age 65 with five years of creditable service, at age 60 with 25 
years of creditable service, or at any age with 30 years of creditable service.  Plan members are 
eligible to retire with partial retirement benefits at age 50 with 20 years of creditable service or 
at age 60 with five years of creditable service (age 55 for firefighters).  Survivor benefits are 
available to eligible beneficiaries of members who die while in active service or within 180 
days of their last day of service and who have either completed 20 years of creditable service 
regardless of age (15 years of creditable service for firefighters and rescue squad members who 
are killed in the line of duty) or have completed five years of service and have reached age 60.  
Eligible beneficiaries may elect to receive a monthly Survivor’s Alternate Benefit for life or a 
return of the member’s contributions.  The plan does not provide for automatic post-retirement 
benefit increases.  Increases are contingent upon actuarial gains of the plan. 
 
LGERS plan members who are LEOs are eligible to retire with full retirement benefits at age 
55 with five years of creditable service as an officer, or at any age with 30 years of creditable 
service.  LEO plan members are eligible to retire with partial retirement benefits at age 50 with 
15 years of creditable service as an officer.  Survivor benefits are available to eligible 
beneficiaries of LEO members who die while in active service or within 180 days of their last 
day of service and who also have either completed 20 years of creditable service regardless of 
age, or have completed 15 years of service as a LEO and have reached age 50, or have 
completed five years of creditable service as a LEO and have reached age 55, or have 
completed 15 years of creditable service as a LEO if killed in the line of duty.  Eligible 
beneficiaries may elect to receive a monthly Survivor’s Alternate Benefit for life or a return of 
the member’s contributions. 
 
Contributions.  Contribution provisions are established by General Statute 128-30 and may be 
amended only by the North Carolina General Assembly.  Town employees are required to 
contribute 6% of their compensation.  Employer contributions are actuarially determined and 
set annually by the LGERS Board of Trustees.  The Town’s contractually required contribution 
rate for the year ended June 30, 2015, was 7.41% of compensation for law enforcement officers 
and 7.07% for general employees and firefighters, actuarially determined as an amount that, 
when combined with employee contributions, is expected to finance the costs of benefits earned 
by employees during the year.  Contributions to the pension plan from the Town were $529,824 
for the year ended June 30, 2015. 
 

32



TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA 
  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

 
 

Refunds of Contributions – Town employees who have terminated service as a contributing 
member of LGERS, may file an application for a refund of their contributions.  By State law, 
refunds to members with at least five years of service include 4% interest.  State law requires a 
60-day waiting period after service termination before the refund may be paid.  The acceptance 
of a refund payment cancels the individual’s right to employer contributions or any other 
benefit provided by LGERS. 
 
Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 
 
At June 30, 2015, the Town reported an asset of $680,921 for its proportionate share of the net 
pension asset.  The net pension asset was measured as of June 30, 2014.  The total pension 
liability used to calculate the net pension asset was determined by an actuarial valuation as of 
December 31, 2013.  The total pension liability was then rolled forward to the measurement 
date of June 30, 2014 utilizing update procedures incorporating the actuarial assumptions.  The 
Town’s proportion of the net pension asset was based on a projection of the Town’s long-term 
share of future payroll covered by the pension plan, relative to the projected future payroll 
covered by the pension plan of all participating LGERS employers, actuarially determined.  At 
June 30, 2014, the Town’s proportion was .1155%, which was a decrease of .0056% from its 
proportion measured as of June 30, 2013. 
 
For the year ended June 30, 2015, the Town recognized pension expense of $32,163.  At June 
30, 2015, the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions from the following sources: 
 

Deferred 

Outflows of 

Resources

Deferred 

Inflows of 

Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience -$                  74,402$        
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments -                    1,585,170     
Changes in proportion and differences between
Town contributions and proportionate share of
contributions -                    42,003          
Town contributions subsequent to the 
measurement date 529,824         -                    

             Total 529,824$       1,701,575$    
 

33



TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA 
  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

 
 

$529,824 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Town 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as an increase of the net 
pension asset in the year ended June 30, 2016.  Other amounts reported as deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 

Year Ending
June 30 Amount

2016 (425,467)$        
2017 (425,467)          
2018 (425,467)          
2019 (425,174)          
2020 -                       

Thereafter -                       
Total (1,701,575)$      

 
Actuarial Assumptions.  The total pension liability in the December 31, 2013 actuarial valuation 
was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the 
measurement: 
 

Inflation 3.0 percent

Salary increase 4.25 to 8.55 percent, including inflation 
and productivity factor

Investment rate of return 7.25 percent, net of pension plan 
investment expense, including inflation

 
The plan currently uses mortality tables that vary by age, gender, employee group (i.e. general, 
law enforcement officer) and health status (i.e. disabled and healthy).  The current mortality 
rates are based on published tables and based on studies that cover significant portions of the 
U.S. population.  The healthy mortality rates also contain a provision to reflect future mortality 
improvements. 
 
The actuarial assumptions used in the December 31, 2013 valuation were based on the results 
of an actuarial experience study for the period January 1, 2005 through December 31, 2009. 
 
Future ad hoc COLA amounts are not considered to be substantively automatic and are 
therefore not included in the measurement. 
 
The projected long-term investment returns and inflation assumptions are developed through 
review of current and historical capital markets data, sell-side investment research, consultant 
whitepapers, and historical performance of investment strategies.  Fixed income return 
projections reflect current yields across the U.S. Treasury yield curve and market expectations 
of forward yields projected and interpolated for multiple tenors and over multiple year 
horizons.  Global public equity return projections are established through analysis of the equity 
risk premium and the fixed income return projections.  Other asset categories and strategies’ 

34



TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA 
  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

 
 

return projections reflect the foregoing and historical data analysis.  These projections are 
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future 
real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.  
The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset 
class as of June 30, 2014 are summarized in the following table: 
 

Asset Class
Target

Allocation

Long-Term 
Expected Real 
Rate of Return

Fixed Income 36.0% 2.5%
Global Equity 40.5% 6.1%
Real Estate 8.0% 5.7%
Alternatives 6.5% 10.5%
Credit 4.5% 6.8%
Inflation Protection 4.5% 3.7%
     Total 100.0%

 
The information above is based on 30-year expectations developed with the consulting actuary 
for the 2013 asset liability and investment policy study for the North Carolina Retirement 
Systems, including LGERS.  The long-term nominal rates of return underlying the real rates of 
return are arithmetic annualized figures.  The real rates of return are calculated from nominal 
rates by multiplicatively subtracting a long-term inflation assumption of 3.19%.  All rates of 
return and inflation are annualized. 
 
A new asset allocation policy was finalized during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 to be 
effective July 1, 2014.  The new asset allocation policy utilizes different asset classes, changes 
in the structure of certain asset classes, and adopts new benchmarks.  Using the asset class 
categories in the preceding table, the new long-term expected arithmetic real rates of return are:  
Fixed Income 2.2%, Global Equity 5.8%, Real Estate 5.2%, Alternatives 9.8%, Credit 6.8%, 
and Inflation Protection 3.19%. 
 
Discount Rate.  The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.25%.  The 
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from 
plan members will be made at the current contribution rate and that contributions from 
employers will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially determined.  Based on these 
assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all 
projected future benefit payments of the current plan members.  Therefore, the long-term 
expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected 
benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 
 

35



TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA 
  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

 
 

Sensitivity of the County’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Asset to Changes in the 
Discount Rate.  The following presents the Town’s proportionate share of the net pension asset 
calculated using the discount rate of 7.25 percent, as well as what the Town’s proportionate 
share of the net pension asset or net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a 
discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (6.25 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.25 
percent) than the current rate: 
 

1%

Decrease

(6.25%)

Discount

Rate

(7.25%)

1%

Increase

(8.25%)
Town's proportionate share of the net 
pension liability (asset) 2,311,340$       (680,921)$       (3,200,308)$     

 
Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position.  Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary 
net position is available in the separately issued Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
(CAFR) for the State of North Carolina. 

 
Law Enforcement Officers’ Special Separation Allowance 
 
Plan Description.  The Town administers a public employee retirement system (the 
“Separation Allowance”), a single-employer defined benefit pension plan that provides 
retirement benefits to the Town’s qualified sworn law enforcement officers.  The Separation 
Allowance is equal to 0.85 percent of the annual equivalent of the base rate of compensation 
most recently applicable to the officer for each year of creditable service.  The retirement 
benefits are not subject to any increases in salary or retirement allowances that may be 
authorized by the General Assembly.  Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 assigns the authority to 
establish and amend benefit provisions to the North Carolina General Assembly. 
 
All full-time law enforcement officers of the Town are covered by the Separation Allowance.  
At December 31, 2014, the Separation Allowance’s membership consisted of: 
 

Retirees receiving benefits 1                    
Terminated plan members entitled
  to, but not yet receiving, benefits
Active plan members 59                  

Total 60                 
 

 
A separate report was not issued for the Plan. 
 

36



TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA 
  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

 
 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Basis of Accounting.  The Town has chosen to fund the Separation Allowance on a pay-as-you-
go basis.  Pension expenditures are made from the General Fund, which is maintained on the 
modified accrual basis of accounting.  Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and 
payable in accordance with the terms of the plan.  
The Separation Allowance has no assets accumulated in a trust that meets the following criteria 
which are outlined in GASB Statements 67 and 68: 
 
 Contributions to the pension plan and earnings on those contributions are irrevocable 
 Pension plan assets are dedicated to providing benefits to plan members 
 Pension plan assets are legally protected from the creditors or employers, non-employer 

contributing entities, the plan administrator and plan members. 
 
Method Used to Value Investments.  No funds are set aside to pay benefits and administration 
costs.  These expenditures are paid as they come due.   
 
Contributions 
 
The Town is required by Article 12D of G.S. Chapter 143 to provide these retirement benefits 
and has chosen to fund the benefit payments on a pay-as-you-go basis through appropriations 
made in the General Fund operating budget.  The Town’s obligation to contribute to this plan is 
established and may be amended by the North Carolina General Assembly.  There were no 
contributions made by employees. 
 
The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part of the December 
31, 2013 actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit actuarial cost method.  The actuarial 
assumptions included (a) 5.00% investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses) and 
(b) projected salary increases of 4.25% to 7.85% per year.  Both (a) and (b) included an 
inflation component of 3.00%.  The assumptions did not include post-retirement benefit 
increases.  The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as a level dollar on a 
closed basis.  The remaining amortization period at December 31, 2013 was 17 years. 
 
Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation.  The Town’s annual pension cost and net 
pension obligation to the Separation Allowance for the current year were as follows: 
 

Annual required contribution 148,607$           
Interest on net pension obligation 38,242               
Adjustment to annual required contribution (64,610)              
Annual pension cost 122,239             
Contributions made 13,045               
Increase in net pension obligation 109,194             
Net pension obligation:
Beginning of year - July 1 764,844             

End of year - June 30 874,038$          

 

37



TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA 
  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

 
 

Annual Percentage Net
Year Ended Pension of APC Pension

June 30 Cost (APC) Contributed Obligation

2013 100,782$          14.52% 676,974$          
2014 122,239            10.67% 764,844            
2015 122,239            10.67% 874,038             

 
Funded Status and Funding Progress.  As of December 31, 2014, the most recent actuarial 
valuation date, the plan was not funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits and the 
unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) was $1,227,668.  The covered payroll (annual 
payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $3,175,206, and the ratio of the UAAL to 
the covered payroll was 38.66 percent.  The Schedule of Funding Progress, presented as 
required supplementary information following the notes to the financial statements, presents 
multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets are increasing or 
decreasing, over time, relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits. 
 
Other Post-Employment Benefits 

 
Plan Description.  Under the terms of a Town resolution, the Town administers a single-
employer defined benefit Healthcare Benefits Plan (the HCB Plan).  In 1992, the Town adopted 
a resolution whereby the Town provided post-employment healthcare benefits to retirees of the 
Town, provided they met certain qualifications.  Under this resolution, the Town agreed to pay 
for the cost of the Medicare supplement for retirees over age 65 with 25 years of continuous 
service with the Town.  Shortly thereafter, the Town amended this resolution to no longer 
include this post-employment benefit; therefore, currently only one retiree is eligible for post-
employment benefits.  The Town obtains healthcare coverage through private insurers.  For the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2015, there were no post-employment employees on the revised 
Town policy.  A separate report was not issued for the plan. 
 
Membership of the HCB plan consisted of the following at December 31, 2011, the date of the 
latest actuarial valuation: 
 

Retirees and dependents receiving benefits 1                

 
 

Funding Policy.  The Town agrees to provide medical insurance to certain retired employees 
as an extended benefit.  Eligible retirees who elect this coverage will be enrolled in the group 
health plan.  Members that retire with at least 20 years of service are allowed to purchase health 
insurance at their own expense.  Retiree has lifetime benefits for a medical supplemental policy 
and Medicare will not assume coverage.  The Town has chosen to fund the benefits on a pay-
as-you-go basis.  
 
The current annual required contribution (ARC) is $10,535, and no annual payroll is covered 
because the Town has closed the plan and no longer offers post-retirement healthcare benefits 
to active members.  For fiscal year 2015, the Town contributed $4,297.  There were no 
contributions by employees for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.  The Town’s obligation to 
contribute to the HCB Plan is established and may be amended by the Town. 

38



TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA 
  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

 
 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.  Benefit expenditures are made from the 
General Fund, which is reported on the modified accrual basis of accounting.  No funds are set 
aside to pay benefits and administration costs.  These expenditures are paid as they come due. 

 
Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation.  The Town’s annual OPEB cost (expense) is 
calculated based on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount 
actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement 45.  The ARC 
represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost 
each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not 
to exceed 30 years.  The following table shows the components of the Town’s annual OPEB 
cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in the Town’s net 
OPEB obligation for the post-retirement benefits: 
 

Annual required contribution 10,535$             
Interest on net OPEB obligation 1,007                 

Adjustment to annual required contribution (8,729)                

Annual OPEB cost (expense) 2,813                 
Contributions made (4,297)                
Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation (1,484)                
Net OPEB obligation:
Beginning of year - July 1 25,194               

End of year - June 30 23,710$             
 

 
The Town’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan, 
and the net OPEB obligation for 2015 were as follows: 
 

Annual Percentage Net
Year Ended OPEB of AOC OPEB

June 30 Cost (AOC) Contributed Obligation

2015 2,813$             152.76% 23,710$           
2014 2,097               211.49% 25,194             
2013 858                  571.10% 27,532             

 
As of December 31, 2011, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the plan was not funded. 
The actuarial accrued liability for benefits and, thus, the unfunded actuarial accrued liability 
(UAAL) was $30,404.  There was no covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees 
covered by the plan) because the Town no longer offers post-retirement healthcare benefits to 
its active members.  Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of 
reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the 
future.  Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality, and healthcare 
trends.  Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required 
contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared 
with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.   

39



TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA 
  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

 
 

The Schedule of Funding Progress, presented as required supplementary information following 
the notes to the financial statements, presents multi-year trend information about whether the 
actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial 
accrued liabilities for benefits. 
 
Actuarial Methods and Assumptions.  Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes 
are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and the plan 
members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the 
historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members at that 
point.  The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to 
reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value 
assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. 
 
The annual required contribution for the current year was determined as part of the December 
31, 2011 actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit actuarial cost method.  The actuarial 
assumptions included (a) 4.00% investment rate of return, which included an inflation 
component of 3.00% and (b) a 9.5% – 5.00% medical cost trend rate with 2018, the year of 
ultimate trend rate.  The actuarial value of assets was determined using the market value of 
assets.  The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being amortized as level dollar amount on a 
closed basis.  The remaining amortization period at December 31, 2011 was three years. 
 
Other Employment Benefits 
 
The Town has also elected to provide death benefits to employees through the Death Benefit 
Plan for members of the Local Governmental Employees’ Retirement System (Death Benefit 
Plan), a multiple-employer, State-administered, cost-sharing plan funded on a one-year term 
cost basis.  The beneficiaries of those employees who die in active service after one year of 
contributing membership in the System, or who die within 180 days after retirement or 
termination of service and have at least one year of contributing membership service in the 
System at the time of death, are eligible for death benefits.  Lump-sum death benefit payments 
to beneficiaries are equal to the employee’s 12 highest months’ salary in a row during the 24 
months prior to the employee’s death, but the benefit may not exceed $50,000 or be less than 
$25,000.  Because all death benefit payments are made from the Death Benefit Plan and not by 
the Town, the Town does not determine the number of eligible participants.  The Town has no 
liability beyond the payment of monthly contributions.  The contributions to the Death Benefit 
Plan cannot be separated between the post-employment benefit amount and the other benefit 
amount. Contributions are determined as a percentage of monthly payroll based upon rates 
established annually by the State.  Separate rates are set for employees not engaged in law 
enforcement and for law enforcement officers.  The Town considers these contributions to be 
immaterial. 
 

40



TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA 
  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

 
 

Accounts Payable – Disaggregate Information 
 

Accrued
Vendors Interest Total

Governmental Activities:
General 556,732$       107,943$         664,675$       

Other governmental 57,113           -                       57,113           

Total governmental activities 613,845$       107,943$         721,788$       

 
Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources 
 
Deferred outflows of resources are comprised of the following: 
 

Source Amount

Contributions to the pension plan in current fiscal year 529,824$       

 
 
The balance in deferred inflows of resources at year-end is composed of the following 
elements: 
 

Amount

Taxes receivable (General Fund) 349,632$           
General billing receivables (General Fund) 39,269               
Privilege license receivable (General Fund) 26,614               

Pension deferrals 1,701,575          

Total 2,117,090$       
 

 
Commitments 

 
Sanitation.  The Town of Matthews has entered into contracts with Browning-Ferris Industries 
of South Atlantic, Inc. for the curbside pick-up and disposal of rubbish, yard waste, and 
recyclable materials, and the use of a sanitary landfill.  The contracts have various dates and 
terms and have renewal options of like terms.  The costs of such contracts are dependent upon 
usage and consumer price index adjustments.   

 

41



TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA 
  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

 
 

Risk Management 
 
The Town of Matthews is exposed to a variety of risks for loss related to theft of, damage to 
and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; torts and natural 
disasters.  The Town will eliminate or transfer risks whenever possible.   
 
However, funds are used to purchase insurance products for group health, workers’ 
compensation and property/casualty exposures. 
 
The Town of Matthews participates in three self-funded risk-financing pool administered by the 
North Carolina League of Municipalities.  Through these pools, the Town obtains general 
liability and auto liability coverage of $1 million per occurrence, property coverage up to the 
total insured values of the property policy, workers’ compensation coverage up to statutory 
limits, and employee health coverage.  The liability and property exposures are reinsured 
through commercial carriers for claims in excess of retentions as selected by the Board of 
Trustees each year.  Stop loss insurance is purchased by the Board of Trustees to protect against 
large medical claims that exceed certain dollar cost levels.  Specific information on the limits of 
the reinsurance, excess and stop loss policies purchased by the Board of Trustees can be 
obtained by contacting the Risk Management Services Department of the NC League of 
Municipalities.  The pools are audited annually be certified public accountants, and the audited 
financial statements are available to the Town upon request. 
 
In accordance with G.S. 159-29, the Town’s employees that have access to $100 or more at any 
given time of the Town’s funds are performance bonded through a commercial surety bond.  
The Finance Officer is bonded for $100,000.  The Town carries commercial crime coverage for 
other financial risks.  For example, the remaining employees that have access to funds are 
covered to a $100,000 limit. 
 
There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year, and settled 
claims have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. 
 
Claims and Judgments 
 
At June 30, 2015, the Town was a defendant to various lawsuits.  In the opinion of the Town’s 
management and the Town attorney, the ultimate effect of these legal matters will not have a 
material adverse effect on the Town’s financial position. 
 
Long-Term Obligations 
 
General Obligation Indebtedness 

 
The Town’s general obligation bonds serviced by the governmental funds were issued for the 
water and sewer lines.  All general obligation bonds are collateralized by the full faith credit 
and taxing power of the Town.  Principal and interest requirements are appropriated when due. 
 

42



TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA 
  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

 
 

Bonds payable at June 30, 2015, are comprised of the following: 
 
General Obligation Bonds - Serviced by the General Fund:

$5,930,000 Water and Sewer Refunding Bonds dated April 1, 
2004, and due in increasing annual principal installments through 
June 1, 2012; installments through June 1, 2018; interest at variable 
rates from 2.0% to 4.0% 1,000,000$        

$5,500,000 Water and Sewer Refunding Bonds dated October 28, 2014
and due in increasing annual principal installments through 
February 1, 2016; installments through February 1, 2034; interest at variable 
rates from 2.0% to 4.0% 5,500,000          

Total 6,500,000$        

 
Notes Payable 
 
As of June 30, 2015, the Town was obligated under the following notes payable to banks used 
to renovate buildings and acquire equipment.  The notes payable were as follows: 
 
Issued $727,184 December 2008 note payable requiring monthly payments of 
$6,926, including principal and interest at the rate of 3.580% per annum 
through July 2019; secured by various equipment 312,174$            

Issued $2,674,532 July 2012 note payable requiring monthly payments of 
$5,000 to $70,000, including principal and interest at the rate of 3.52% per 
annum through June 2017; secured by real estate and equipment 1,125,194           

Issued $200,000 April 2015 note payable requiring annual payments of 
$51,864, including principal and interest at the rate of 1.48% per annum 
through April 2019; secured by equipment 200,000              

Issued $275,000 November 2010 note payable requiring semi-annual payments 
of $20,000 to $24,000, including principal and interest at the effective rate of 
2.00% per annum through November 2017; secured by real estate 98,214                

Issued $861,246 January 2010 note payable requiring annual payments of 
$113,603, including interest at the rate of 5.38% per annum through January 
2020; secured by equipment 486,717              

Total 2,222,299$         

 

43



TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA 
  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

 
 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for governmental activities long-term obligations 
are as follows: 
 

Year Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

2016 695,000$      207,252$      801,269$      69,097$        1,496,269$   276,349$      
2017 685,000        152,488        869,817        40,315          1,554,817     192,803        
2018 520,000        132,050        286,281        19,972          806,281        152,022        
2019 300,000        117,250        157,129        12,071          457,129        129,321        
2020 300,000        111,250        107,803        5,800            407,803        117,050        

2021-2025 1,500,000     463,250        -                   -                   1,500,000     463,250        
2026-2030 1,500,000     273,500        -                   -                   1,500,000     273,500        
2031-2034 1,000,000     69,250          -                   -                   1,000,000     69,250          

Total 6,500,000$   1,526,290$  2,222,299$  147,255$     8,722,299$   1,673,545$  

General Obligation 
Bonds Notes Payable Total Debt Due

 
At June 30, 2015, the Town of Matthews had a legal debt margin of approximately 
$273,500,945. 
 
Changes in Long-Term Liabilities 
 
The following is a summary of changes in the Town's long-term obligations for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2015. 

 
July 1, June 30, Current
2014 Increases Decreases 2015 Portion

Governmental Activities:
General obligation bonds 1,400,000$    5,500,000$  (400,000)$    6,500,000$    695,000$     
Premium -                     107,132       -                   107,132         -                   
Notes payable 2,845,250      200,000       (822,951)      2,222,299      801,269       
Compensated absences 435,369         315,550       (324,292)      426,627         42,663         
OPEB liability 25,194           2,813           (4,297)          23,710           -                   
Net pension obligation (LGERS) 1,459,720      -                   (1,459,720)   -                     -                   
Net pension obligation (LEO) 764,844         122,239       (13,045)        874,038         -                   

Governmental activity 
  long-term liabilities 6,930,377$   6,247,734$ (3,024,305)$ 10,153,806$  1,538,932$ 

 
Compensated absences, net pension liabilities, and OPEB liabilities for governmental activities 
have typically been liquidated in the General Fund.  The LGERS plan had a net pension asset as 
of June 30, 2015; however, the plan had a net pension liability at the beginning of the fiscal 
year. 
 

44



TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA 
  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

 
 

C. Interfund Balances and Activities 
 

Transfers To/From Other Funds 
 

From Fund To Fund Amount Purpose

General Fund Capital Improvement Fund 265,670$       To offset cost of 
  construction in progress

Capital Reserve Fund Capital Improvement Fund 50,600           To offset cost of 
  construction in progress

Tourism Fund Capital Improvement Fund 205,000         To offset cost of 
  construction in progress

Capital Improvement Fund Tourism Fund 292,000         To offset operating costs

Tourism Fund General Fund 575,000         To offset operating costs

 
3. Summary Disclosure of Significant Commitments and Contingencies 
 

Federal and State-Assisted Programs 
 
The Town has received proceeds from Federal and State grants.  Periodic audits of these grants are 
required, and certain costs may be questioned as not being appropriate expenditures under the grant 
agreements.  Such audits could result in the refund of grant monies to the grantor agencies.  
Management believes that any required refunds will be immaterial.  No provision has been made in 
the accompanying financial statements for the refund of grant monies. 
 

4. Change in Accounting Principles/Restatement 
 
The Town implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting For Pensions (an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27), in 
the fiscal year ending June 30, 2015.  This implementation of the statement required the Town to 
record beginning net pension liability and the effects on net position of contributions made by the 
Town during the measurement period (fiscal year ending June 30, 2014).  As a result the net 
position for the governmental activities decreased by $988,490. 

45



Schedule A-1

TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA

LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS' SPECIAL SEPARATION ALLOWANCE
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Actuarial UAAL as a
Actuarial Accrued Liability Unfunded Percentage

Actuarial Value of (AAL) Projected AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Unit Credit (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)

12/31/2005 -$                   357,202$                357,202$       0.00% 2,226,099$    16.05%
12/31/2006 -                     403,306                  403,306         0.00% 2,486,737      13.60%
12/31/2007 -                     496,452                  496,452         0.00% 2,640,727      18.80%
12/31/2008 -                     728,727                  728,727         0.00% 2,686,047      27.13%
12/31/2009 -                     1,136,609               1,136,609      0.00% 2,954,932      38.46%
12/31/2010 -                     871,535                  871,535         0.00% 2,895,935      30.10%
12/31/2011 -                     870,636                  870,636         0.00% 2,979,150      29.22%
12/31/2012 -                     905,013                  905,013         0.00% 2,834,902      31.92%
12/31/2013 -                     1,075,211               1,075,211      0.00% 3,021,501      35.59%
12/31/2014 -                     1,227,668               1,227,668      0.00% 3,175,206      38.66%

46



Schedule A-2

TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA

LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS' SPECIAL SEPARATION ALLOWANCE
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Annual Percentage
Year Ended Required of ARC

June 30 Contribution (ARC) Contributed

2005 53,365$                          8.12%
2006 55,496                            10.54%
2007 58,496                            17.65%
2008 55,855                            133.70%
2009 61,000                            26.49%
2010 78,725                            33.87%
2011 120,973                          17.08%
2012 105,038                          13.94%
2013 108,038                          13.55%
2014 112,688                          3.12%
2015 148,607                          8.78%

Notes to the Required Schedules:
The information presented in the required supplementary schedules was determined as part of 
the actuarial valuations at the dates indicated.  Additional information as of the latest actuarial 
valuation follows:

Valuation date 12/31/14
Actuarial cost method Projected unit credit
Amortization method Level dollar closed
Remaining amortization period 16 years
Asset valuation method Market value
Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return* 5.00%
Projected salary increases* 4.25% - 7.85%
Cost-of-living adjustments None

*Includes inflation at 3.00%

47



Schedule A-3

TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA

OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Actuarial
Accrued UAAL as a

Actuarial Liability (AAL) - Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value of Projected Unit AAL Funded Covered Covered
Valuation Assets Credit (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b - a) /c)

12/31/2008 -$               166,478$               166,478$           0.00% 6,176,736$      2.70%
12/31/2011 -                 30,404                   30,404               0.00% -                      N/A

Annual 
Required Percentage

Year Ended Contribution of  ARC
June 30 (ARC) Contributed

2015 10,535$             40.79%
2014 10,535               42.10%
2013 10,535               46.51%
2012 10,535               44.61%
2011 16,734               28.05%
2010 16,734               26.06%

Notes to the Required Schedules:
The information presented above was determined as part of the actuarial valuation at the dates indicated.
Additional information as of the latest valuation follows:

Valuation date  12/31/2011
Actuarial cost method Projected unit credit
Amortization method Level dollar amount, closed
Remaining amortization period 3 years
Asset valuation method Market value
Actuarial assumptions:
Investment rate of return*  4.00%
Medical cost trend rate 9.5% - 5.0%
Year of ultimate trend rate  2018

*Includes inflation at 3.00%

Schedule of Funding Progress

Schedule of Employer Contributions

48



Schedule A-4

TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA

TOWN OF MATTHEWS PROPORTIONATE SHARE
 OF NET PENSION LIABILITY (ASSET)
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
LAST TWO FISCAL YEARS*

2015 2014

Matthews' proportion of the net pension liability (asset) (%) -0.11546% 0.12110%

Matthews' proportion of the net pension liability (asset) ($) (680,921)$        1,459,720$      

Matthews' covered-employee payroll 6,632,393$      6,093,728$      

Matthews' proportionate share of the net pension liability (asset) as 
a percentage of its covered-employee payroll ( 10.27%) 23.95%

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability** 102.64% 94.35%

*  The amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the prior fiscal year ending June 30.

**  This will be the same percentage for all participant employers in the LGERS plan.  

Local Government Employees' Retirement System

49



Schedule A-5

TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA

TOWN OF MATTHEWS CONTRIBUTIONS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
LAST TWO FISCAL YEARS

2015 2014

Contractually required contribution 529,824$         471,230$         

Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution 529,824           471,230           

Contribution deficiency (excess) -$                     -$                    

Matthews' covered-employee payroll 7,310,377$      6,632,393$      

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 7.25% 7.10%

Local Government Employees' Retirement System

50



Schedule 1

TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES - GENERAL FUND CONSOLIDATED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Capital Total
General Reserve General 

Fund Fund Fund

Revenues:
Ad valorem taxes 11,024,527$      -$                       11,024,527$      
Other taxes and licenses 4,859,030          -                         4,859,030          
Unrestricted intergovernmental 218,473             -                         218,473             
Restricted intergovernmental 1,635,821          -                         1,635,821          
Permits and fees 15,000               -                         15,000               
Sales and services 1,564,049          -                         1,564,049          
Investment earnings 1,400                 183                    1,583                 
Miscellaneous 242,173             -                         242,173             

Total revenues 19,560,473        183                    19,560,656        

Expenditures:
Current:
General government 3,504,431          -                         3,504,431          
Public safety 7,414,685          -                         7,414,685          
Public works 2,253,628          -                         2,253,628          
Environmental protection 2,457,262          -                         2,457,262          
Economic and physical development 439,866             -                         439,866             
Culture and recreation 1,309,387          -                         1,309,387          
Debt service:
Principal retirement 1,222,951          -                         1,222,951          
Interest and other charges 136,895             -                         136,895             

Total expenditures 18,739,105        -                         18,739,105        

Revenues over (under) expenditures 821,368             183                    821,551             

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers (to) other funds (265,670)            (50,600)              (316,270)            
Transfers from other funds 575,000             -                         575,000             

Proceeds from sale of capital assets 13,268               -                         13,268               

Total other financing sources (uses) 322,598             (50,600)              271,998             

Net change in fund balances 1,143,966          (50,417)              1,093,549          

Fund Balances:
Beginning of year - July 1 6,719,067          53,204               6,772,271          

End of year - June 30 7,863,033$        2,787$               7,865,820$        

51



Schedule 2
Page 1 of 4

TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

2014

Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual

Revenues:
Ad Valorem Taxes:
Taxes 11,161,000$     10,975,301$     (185,699)$         11,043,203$     
Penalties and interest 40,000              49,226              9,226                80,882              

Total 11,201,000       11,024,527       (176,473)           11,124,085       

Other Taxes and Licenses:
Local option sales tax 2,495,861         2,689,154         193,293            2,351,106         
Piped natural gas excise tax 150,000            3,347                (146,653)           232,923            
Utility franchise tax 880,650            1,294,723         414,073            829,795            
Telecommunications sales tax 331,200            357,060            25,860              345,097            
Tipping tax 15,800              19,013              3,213                19,904              
In lieu of land dedication fees -                        33,560              33,560              -                        
Animal control license 25,000              25,001              1                       25,370              
Cablevision franchise fees 196,692            225,192            28,500              204,769            
Rental vehicle tax 39,300              39,242              (58)                    53,981              
Privilege licenses 200,000            172,738            (27,262)             180,223            

Total 4,334,503         4,859,030         524,527            4,243,168         

Unrestricted Intergovernmental:
Beer and wine tax 117,000            140,525            23,525              124,243            
ABC profit distribution 71,300              77,948              6,648                70,064              

Total 188,300            218,473            30,173              194,307            

Restricted Intergovernmental:
Powell Bill allocation 766,626            766,103            (523)                  745,750            
CMUD bond payment reimbursement 450,063            450,063            -                        473,388            
Police Grant - D.A.R.E. 15,007              15,007              -                        14,432              
CDBG 49,000              -                        (49,000)             -                        
Fire - SAFER grants 319,491            246,304            (73,187)             37,155              
Miscellaneous grants 160,734            158,344            (2,390)               123,129               

Total 1,760,921         1,635,821         (125,100)           1,393,854         

Permits and Fees:
Planning revenue 15,000              15,000              -                        15,000              

Total 15,000              15,000              -                        15,000              

2015

52



Schedule 2
Page 2 of 4

TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

2014

Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual

2015

Sales and Services:
Stormwater fees 613,758            587,039            (26,719)             565,258            
Rental fees 205,584            204,289            (1,295)               228,795            
Recreation program revenues 107,000            172,954            65,954              152,089            
Community center revenues 190,000            303,902            113,902            255,691            
Zoning ordinance sales 12,500              20,598              8,098                12,852              
Rescue/EMS assistance 100,000            90,166              (9,834)               94,525              
Police services 23,794              24,015              221                   9,906                
Other police contracts 161,086            161,086            -                        131,986            
Police agreement -                        -                        -                        31                     

Total 1,413,722         1,564,049         150,327            1,451,133         

Investment Earnings 1,000                1,400                400                   732                   

Miscellaneous:
Other 123,913            242,173            118,260            112,027            

Total 123,913            242,173            118,260            112,027            

Total revenues 19,038,359       19,560,473       522,114            18,534,306       

Expenditures:
General Government:
Salaries and employee benefits 18,906              18,906              -                        18,916              
Expenses allowance 38,000              30,450              7,550                34,911              
Operating expenses 178,561            186,113            (7,552)               166,224            

Total 235,467            235,469            (2)                      220,051            

Administration:
Salaries and employee benefits 2,643,223         2,613,251         29,972              2,362,262         
Operating expenditures 616,180            644,939            (28,759)             660,148            
Capital outlay 12,500              10,772              1,728                18,376              

Total 3,271,903         3,268,962         2,941                3,040,786         

Total general government 3,507,370         3,504,431         2,939                3,260,837         

53



Schedule 2
Page 3 of 4

TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

2014

Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual

2015

Public Safety:
Police:
Salaries and employee benefits 4,415,538         4,422,012         (6,474)               4,232,277         
Operating expenditures 1,106,665         975,975            130,690            792,004            
Capital outlay 237,600            236,987            613                   316,417            

Total 5,759,803         5,634,974         124,829            5,340,698         

Fire:
Salaries and employee benefits 1,055,883         1,066,860         (10,977)             814,094            
Operating expenditures 614,508            497,434            117,074            303,508            
Donation to volunteer fire departments 142,500            144,000            (1,500)               144,000            

Total 1,812,891         1,708,294         104,597            1,261,602         

Animal Control:
Salaries and employee benefits 46,717              44,989              1,728                42,625              
Other operating expenses 32,265              26,428              5,837                24,042              

Total 78,982              71,417              7,565                66,667              

Total public safety 7,651,676         7,414,685         236,991            6,668,967         

Public Works:
Street Department:
Salaries and employee benefits 1,301,526         1,268,887         32,639              1,269,003         
Operating expenses 1,646,414         960,177            686,237            1,389,757         
Capital outlay 558,898            24,564              534,334            22,655              

Total 3,506,838         2,253,628         1,253,210         2,681,415         

Environmental Protection:
Sanitation:
Contracted services 1,908,700         1,891,807         16,893              1,868,892         

Total 1,908,700         1,891,807         16,893              1,868,892         

StormWater:
Salaries and employee benefits 370,108            374,157            (4,049)               348,109            
Operating expenses 192,902            191,298            1,604                198,656            

Capital outlay 28                     -                        28                     1,809                

Total 563,038            565,455            (2,417)               548,574            

Total environmental protection 2,471,738         2,457,262         14,476              2,417,466         

54



Schedule 2
Page 4 of 4

TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA

GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015
WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014

2014

Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under Actual

2015

Economic and Physical Development:
Planning and Zoning:
Salaries and employee benefits 392,013            370,411            21,602              363,160            
Operating expenses 99,518              69,455              30,063              42,766              

Total 491,531            439,866            51,665              405,926            

Culture and Recreation:
Parks:
Salaries and employee benefits 608,392            596,819            11,573              560,298            
Operating expenses 708,132            704,104            4,028                595,313            
Capital outlay 15,000              8,464                6,536                14,131              

Total 1,331,524         1,309,387         22,137              1,169,742         

Debt Service:
Principal retirement 1,235,383         1,222,951         12,432              1,402,569         
Interest and other charges 137,000            136,895            105                   179,037            

Total 1,372,383         1,359,846         12,537              1,581,606         

Contingency 11,335              -                        11,335              -                        

Total expenditures 20,344,395       18,739,105       1,605,290         18,185,959       

Revenues over (under) expenditures (1,306,036)        821,368            2,127,404         348,347            

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Sale of capital assets 10,000              13,268              3,268                20,627              
Transfer (to) other funds (265,670)           (265,670)           -                        (367,483)           
Transfer from other funds 1,561,706         575,000            (986,706)           698,172            

Total other financing sources (uses): 1,306,036         322,598            (983,438)           351,316            

Net change in fund balance -$                      1,143,966         1,143,966$       699,663            

Fund Balance:
Beginning of year - July 1 6,719,067         6,019,404         

End of year - June 30 7,863,033$       6,719,067$       

55



Schedule 3

TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA

CAPITAL RESERVE FUND - STORMWATER PROJECTS
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under

Revenues:

Investment earnings -$                       183$                  (183)$                 

Total revenues -                         183                    (183)                   

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer to other funds (50,600)              (50,600)              -                         
Appropriated fund balance 50,600               -                         (50,600)              

Total other financing sources (uses) -                         (50,600)              (50,600)              

Net change in fund balance -$                      (50,417)              (50,417)$           

Fund Balance:
Beginning of year - July 1 53,204               

End of year - June 30 2,787$               

56



Schedule 4

Page 1 of 2
TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA

MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUND - CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Project Prior Current Total Variance
Authorization Years Year to Date Over/Under

Revenues:
Investment earnings 11,188$            -$                   11,188$            
Restricted intergovernmental 2,869,926         162,034         3,031,960
Miscellaneous 80,851              688                81,539

Donations 2,400                71,629           74,029              

Total revenues 10,968,921$     2,964,365         234,351         3,198,716         (7,770,205)$     

Expenditures:
Culture and Recreation:
Park equipment replacement -                       17,704           17,704              

Wayfinding system 439,028            30,716           469,744            

Total culture and recreation 439,028            48,420           487,448            

Public Safety:
Police radio system upgrade 347,862            36,801           384,663            
Volunteer fire truck 150,000            -                     150,000            

Police Mobile CAD 339,107            -                     339,107            

Total public safety 836,969            36,801           873,770            

Public Works:
W. Charles Street Connector Project 163,258            5,900             169,158            
Buckley Way Project 26,997              11,550           38,547              
North Trade Street Project 40,192              -                     40,192              
South Trade Street Project 473,527            -                     473,527            
Right-of-way Crestdale -                       62,848 62,848              
Public works vehicle and equipment -                       65,329 65,329              
Streetsweeper -                       238,183 238,183            

Hwy 51-Matthews-Idlewild Intersection 81,250              -                     81,250              

S. Trade Street Project - GO Bonds 125,294            1,658,179      1,783,473         
Improvements:  Hwy 51-Matthews 
  Mint Hill Road 65,753              -                     65,753              

Total public works 976,271            2,041,989      3,018,260         

Environmental Protection:

Campus Ridge Project 488,485            139,087         627,572            

Information Systems:
Financial software 100,682            -                     100,682            

Actual

57



Schedule 4

Page 2 of 2
TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA

MAJOR CAPITAL PROJECT FUND - CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FROM INCEPTION AND FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Project Prior Current Total Variance
Authorization Years Year to Date Over/Under

Actual

Debt Service:
Principal 1,857,512         -                     1,857,512         

Interest 82,957              -                     82,957              

Total debt service 1,940,469         -                     1,940,469         

Total expenditures 21,567,514       4,781,904         2,266,297      7,048,201         14,519,313       

Revenues over (under) expenditures (10,598,593)      (1,817,539)       (2,031,946)     (3,849,485)       6,749,108         

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer from other funds 8,196,816         587,483            521,270         1,108,753         (7,088,063)       
Transfer to other funds (292,000)           -                       (292,000)        (292,000)          -                       
Premium issued 107,132            -                       107,132         107,132            -                       
Long-term debt issued 2,540,145         1,622,791         5,700,000      7,322,791         4,782,646         

Proceeds from sale of capital assets 46,500              193,009            -                     193,009            146,509            

Total other financing sources (uses) 10,598,593       2,403,283         6,036,402      8,439,685         (2,158,908)       

Net change in fund balance -$                      585,744$          4,004,456      4,590,200$       4,590,200$       

Fund Balance:
Beginning of year - July 1 585,744         

End of year - June 30 4,590,200$    

58



Schedule 5

TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUND - TOURISM FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Variance
Budget Actual Over/Under

Revenues:
Other taxes and licenses:
Occupancy tax 429,629$           504,123$           74,494$             
Prepared food tax 809,859             826,173             16,314               
Rental car tax 131,328             126,052             (5,276)                
Sales and services 2,000                 608                    (1,392)                

Total revenues 1,372,816          1,456,956          84,140               

Expenditures:
Culture and recreation
Tourism 850,659             606,365             244,294             

Total expenditures 850,659             606,365             244,294             

Revenues over (under) expenditures 522,157             850,591             (328,434)            

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfer from other funds 292,000             292,000             -                         
Transfer to other funds (814,157)            (780,000)            (34,157)              

Total other financing sources (uses) (522,157)            (488,000)            (34,157)              

Net change in fund balance -$                      362,591             362,591$          

Fund Balance:
Beginning of year - July 1 334,018             

End of year - June 30 696,609$           

59



Schedule 6

TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA

SCHEDULE OF AD VALOREM TAXES RECEIVABLE
JUNE 30, 2015

Uncollected Uncollected
Balance Collections Balance

Fiscal Year July 1, 2014 Additions and Credits June 30, 2015

2014-2015 -$                           11,200,735$          11,149,083$          51,652$                 
2013-2014 138,604                 -                            83,483                   55,121                   
2012-2013 70,186                   -                            22,333                   47,853                   
2011-2012 49,503                   -                            3,989                     45,514                   
2010-2011 92,654                   -                            1,254                     91,400                   
2009-2010 40,745                   -                            1,122                     39,623                   
2008-2009 36,598                   -                            1,594                     35,004                   
2007-2008 41,576                   -                            257                        41,319                   
2006-2007 27,878                   -                            1,535                     26,343                   
2005-2006 15,904                   -                            101                        15,803                   

2004-2005 10,360                   -                            10,360                   -                            

Total 524,008$               11,200,735$          11,275,111$          449,632                 

Less:  Allowance for uncollectible accounts (100,000)               

Ad valorem taxes receivable, net 349,632$              

Reconciliation with Revenues:
Ad valorem taxes - General Fund 11,024,527$          
Reconciling items:
Penalties and interest collected (49,226)                 
Amounts written off due to Statute of Limitations 10,360                   

Prior year releases and other adjustments 289,350                 

Total collections and credits 11,275,011$          

60



Schedule 7

TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA

ANALYSIS OF CURRENT YEAR LEVY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015

Property
Excluding

Registered Registered
Property Total Motor Motor
Valuation Rate Levy Vehicles Vehicles

Original Levy:
Property taxed at current year's rate 3,157,719,370$  0.3175$   10,025,759$    10,025,759$      -$                       
Registered motor vehicles taxed at 
  current year's rate 430,152,756       0.3175     1,365,735        -                        1,365,735           

Total 3,587,872,126    11,391,494      10,025,759        1,365,735           

Discoveries:
Prior years' taxes 10,643,465         0.3175     33,793             33,412               381                    

Abatement: (70,725,039)       0.3175     (224,552)         (224,552)           -                         

Total property valuation 3,527,790,551$  

Net Levy 11,200,735      9,834,619          1,366,116           

Uncollected taxes at June 30, 2015 (51,652)         (51,583)            (69)                    

Current Year's Taxes Collected 11,149,083$   9,783,036$        1,366,047$        

Current Levy Collection Percentage 99.54% 99.48% 99.99%

Secondary Market Disclosures:

Assessed Valuation:
Assessment ratio 1 100%

Real property 3,157,719,370$  

Personal property 315,172,778       

Public service companies 2 54,898,403        

Total assessed valuation 3,527,790,551    
Tax rate per $100 0.3175               

Levy (includes discoveries, releases and abatements) 3 11,200,735$      

1 Percentage of appraised value has been established by statute.
2 Valuation of railroads, telephone companies, and other utilities 
  as determined by North Carolina Property Tax Commission
3 The levy includes interest and penalties.

Town-Wide

Total Levy

61



 

730 13th Avenue Drive SE ♦ Hickory, North Carolina 28602 ♦ Phone 828-327-2727 ♦ Fax 828-328-2324 
13 South Center Street ♦ Taylorsville, North Carolina 28681 ♦ Phone 828-632-9025 ♦ Fax 828-632-9085 

Toll Free Both Locations 1-800-948-0585 ♦ Website: www.martinstarnes.com 

Report On Internal Control Over Financial Reporting And On Compliance And 
Other Matters Based On An Audit Of Financial Statements Performed 

In Accordance With Government Auditing Standards 
 

Independent Auditor's Report 
 
 
To the Honorable Mayor and 
Members of the Town Council 
Town of Matthews 
Matthews, North Carolina 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the accompanying financial statements of the 
governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of 
Matthews, North Carolina, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town of Matthews’ basic financial statements, and 
have issued our report thereon dated October 26, 2015.  
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting  
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Town of Matthews' 
internal control over financial reporting to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the 
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Matthews’ internal control.  
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town’s internal control.  
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or 
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or combination 
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement 
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.  A 
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less 
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with 
governance.  
 
Our consideration of internal control was for limited purpose described in the first paragraph and was not 
designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control that we consider to be material weaknesses.  However material weaknesses may exist that have 
not been identified. 
 
 

62



 

 

Compliance and Other Matters   
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town of Matthews' financial statements are 
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, non-compliance with which could have a direct and material 
effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on 
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express 
such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of non-compliance or other matters that 
are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance, 
and the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control or on compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.  
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 

 
 
Martin Starnes & Associates, CPAs, P.A. 
Hickory, NC 
October 26, 2015 
 
 

63



TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA 
 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

 
 

 

Section I. Summary of Auditor's Results 
 
Financial Statements 

Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

 Material weaknesses identified?    Yes  X  No 

 Significant deficiencies identified that are 
not considered to be material weaknesses?    Yes  X  None reported 

Non-compliance material to financial statements 
noted?    Yes  X  No 
 
Section II. Financial Statements Findings 
 
None reported. 
 
 
 

64



TOWN OF MATTHEWS, NORTH CAROLINA 
 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR'S AUDIT FINDINGS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2015 

 
 

 

Finding 2014-001  
 
Status: Resolved 
 
 

65



 

 

 

 
   GFOA Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting 1998-Present. 

 

 

 

 
November 18, 2015 
 
To: Honorable Mayor and Board of Commissioners 
 
From: Christopher Tucker, Finance Director 
 
CC: Hazen Blodgett, Town Manager 
 Jamie Justice, Assistant Town Manager 
 Lori Canapinno, Town Clerk 
 
RE: Monthly Financial Report 
 
 
Please find attached for your review the Monthly Financial Summary for Fiscal Year Ending 2016 through 
October 2015. 
 
Staff has minimal comments other than to remind the Board that Sales and Use Tax and most Unrestricted 
Intergovernmental revenues come several months in arrears. Through two months, sales tax is slightly above 
budgeted pace, and the next quarterly distribution of state revenues occurs in December 2015. 
 
 
Other items of note: 

 Tax Revaluation Refunds through October 2015 are $804,344.24.  
 

 

 



fye 2016 fye 2016 fye 2016

GENERAL FUND BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL % of fye 2016

(ORIGINAL) (AMENDED) Through Oct '15 BUDGET PROJECTED

REVENUES

Ad Valorem Taxes 12,058,000$      12,058,000$      1,212,876$           10.06% -$                 

Local Option Sales Taxes 2,781,078$        2,781,078$        490,391$              17.63% -$                 

Unrestricted Intergovernmental 2,132,615$        2,132,615$        95,320$                4.47% -$                 

Powell Bill 760,000$           760,000$           386,172$              50.81% -$                 

Other Restricted Intergovernmental 447,000$           447,000$           20,000$                4.47% -$                 

Restricted / Committed to Public Safety 584,523$           590,013$           186,589$              31.62% -$                 

Stormwater Fees / Penalties 600,000$           600,000$           149,459$              24.91% -$                 

Recreation Revenues 330,000$           330,000$           113,267$              34.32% ^ -$                 

Permits and Fees 57,000$             57,000$             22,356$                39.22% ^ -$                 

Investment Earnings -$                   -$                   1,233$                  -$                 

Misc. Revenues 86,500$             86,500$             22,081$                25.53% -$                 

Transfers from Other Funds 685,000$           685,000$           -$                     0.00% -$                 

Other Financing Sources 10,000$             10,000$             29,004$                290.04% ^ -$                 

Fund Balance Appropriated 115,000$           362,103$           -$                     0.00% -$                 

20,646,716$      20,899,309$      2,728,748$           13.06% -$                 

fye 2016 fye 2016 fye 2016

BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL % of fye 2016

(ORIGINAL) (AMENDED) Through Oct '15 BUDGET PROJECTED

EXPENDITURES

General Government 3,481,676$        3,556,246$        1,254,326$           35.27% ^ -$                  

Police 5,708,803$        5,831,935$        2,196,686$           37.67% ^ -$                  

Fire/EMS 1,909,223$        1,921,529$        590,716$              30.74% -$                  

Public Works 3,697,829$        3,721,829$        1,601,888$           43.04% ^ -$                  

Sanitation 1,930,775$        1,930,775$        464,725$              24.07% -$                  

Planning and Development 457,356$           457,356$           142,917$              31.25% -$                  

Economic Development 25,000$             43,585$             5,229$                  12.00% -$                  

Parks & Rec / Cultural Arts 1,154,844$        1,154,844$        486,441$              42.12% ^ -$                  

Debt Service 1,776,296$        1,776,296$        324,753$              18.28% -$                  

Contingency / Transfers 504,914$           504,914$           421,400$              83.46% -$                  

20,646,716$      20,899,309$      7,489,080$           35.83% ^ -$                 

-$                   -$                   (4,760,332)$         -$                 

FINANCE REPORT - 2015 NOVEMBER 23 



fye 2016 fye 2016 fye 2016

TOURISM FUND BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL % of fye 2016

(ORIGINAL) (AMENDED) Through Oct '15 BUDGET PROJECTED

REVENUES

Tourism Merchandise -$                   -$                   461$                     -$                 

Occupancy Tax 446,160$           446,160$           139,192$              31.20% -$                 

Prepared Food & Beverage Tax 842,400$           842,400$           413,086$              49.04% -$                 

Rental Car Tax 136,240$           136,240$           25,525$                18.74% -$                 

Miscellaneous -$                   -$                   -$                     -$                 

1,424,800$        1,424,800$        578,264$              40.59% -$                 

fye 2016 fye 2016 fye 2016

BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL % of fye 2016

(ORIGINAL) (AMENDED) Through Oct '15 BUDGET PROJECTED

EXPENDITURES

Marketing 5,000$               5,000$               -$                     0.00% -$                  

Decorations/Banners/Flags 5,000$               5,000$               -$                     0.00% -$                  

Merchandise 1,000$               1,000$               -$                     0.00% -$                  

Landscaping 5,000$               5,000$               -$                     0.00% -$                  

Tourism Projects 45,000$             45,000$             16,760$                37.24% -$                  

SportsPlex 249,200$           249,200$           249,000$              99.92% -$                  

Tourism Grants 60,000$             60,000$             -$                     0.00% -$                  

Fullwood Theater 3,000$               3,000$               2,626$                  87.52% -$                  

Outen Pottery 55,000$             55,000$             -$                     0.00% -$                  

Matthews Alive 60,000$             60,000$             -$                     0.00% -$                  

Historical Society 40,000$             40,000$             12,921$                32.30% -$                  

Arts & Science Council 18,000$             18,000$             -$                     0.00% -$                  

Other Town Events 18,600$             18,600$             -$                     0.00% -$                  

Transfer to General Fund 685,000$           685,000$           -$                     0.00% -$                  

Transfer to CIP 175,000$           175,000$           175,000$              100.00% -$                  

1,424,800$        1,424,800$        456,307$              32.03% -$                 

-$                   -$                   121,957$              -$                 



RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN BOARD OF THE TOWN OF MATTHEWS 
AUTHORIZING ADVERTISEMENTS FOR BID OF CONTRACTS 

TO BE SOLELY BY ELECTRONIC MEANS 
 

THAT WHEREAS, the Town is desirous to advertise bidding for contracts required to be 
bid by N.C.G.S. §143-129 to be advertised solely by electronic means; and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 143-129 of the North Carolina General Statutes authorizes this 

process. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Board of the Town of Matthews, 

North Carolina, that it hereby authorizes all of the contracts required to be bid pursuant to 
Section 143-129 of the North Carolina General Statutes to be advertised solely by electronic 
means. 

 
RESOLVED, this the 23rd day of November 2015. 

 
 
 
              
       Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
      
Town Clerk 


	10D-tax_refunds.pdf
	112315 Matthews BER-SL362 9-12-15 CORRECTED.pdf
	Matthews BER362 9-12-15

	112315 Matthews SL362 Misc 12.pdf
	Matthews SL362 Misc 12


	10E1-budget_cams_3200.40.pdf
	SECTION 3:  The purpose of this amendment is to recognize special donation received from the residents of The Polo Club for the purchase of body cameras.

	10E2-budget_cams_2700.00.pdf
	SECTION 3:  The purpose of this amendment is to recognize special donation received from the Chamber of Commerce for the purchase of body cameras.

	10E3-budget_HIDTA_3944.85.pdf
	SECTION 3:  The purpose of this amendment is to recognize shared proceeds received through DEA Task Force

	10E4-budget_HIDTA_28798.64.pdf
	SECTION 3:  The purpose of this amendment is to recognize shared proceeds received through DEA Task Force

	11B-PC_to_dos.pdf
	11-23-15

	12A-audit_presentation.pdf
	Town of Matthews - 2015 Audit Report.pdf
	IAR
	MD&A
	Exh A
	Exh B
	Exh C
	Exh D
	Exh E
	Exh F
	Notes
	Sch A-1
	Sch A-2
	Sch A-3
	Sch A-4
	Sch A-5
	Sch 1
	Sch 2
	Sch 3
	Sch 4
	Sch 5
	Sch 6
	Sch 7
	Compliance





